UNIVERSITY OF LJUBLJANA SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND BUSINESS

MASTER THESIS

IMPROVING FORECASTING ACCURACY BY APPLYING LINEAR PROGRAMMING

Ljubljana, date

DANIAL ZAGHI

AUTHORSHIP STATEMENT

The undersigned _____Danial Zaghi_____, a student at the University of Ljubljana, School of Economics and Business, (hereafter: SEB LU), author of this written final work of studies with the title Improving Forecasting Accuracy by Applying Linear Programming ____, prepared under supervision of _____ Prof. dr. Polona Domadenik

DECLARE

- 1. this written final work of studies to be based on the results of my own research;
- 2. the printed form of this written final work of studies to be identical to its electronic form;
- 3. the text of this written final work of studies to be language-edited and technically in adherence with the SEB LU's Technical Guidelines for Written Works, which means that I cited and / or quoted works and opinions of other authors in this written final work of studies in accordance with the SEB LU's Technical Guidelines for Written Works;
- 4. to be aware of the fact that plagiarism (in written or graphical form) is a criminal offence and can be prosecuted in accordance with the Criminal Code of the Republic of Slovenia;
- 5. to be aware of the consequences a proven plagiarism charge based on the this written final work could have for my status at the SEB LU in accordance with the relevant SEB LU Rules;
- 6. to have obtained all the necessary permits to use the data and works of other authors which are (in written or graphical form) referred to in this written final work of studies and to have clearly marked them;
- 7. to have acted in accordance with ethical principles during the preparation of this written final work of studies and to have, where necessary, obtained permission of the Ethics Committee;
- my consent to use the electronic form of this written final work of studies for the detection of content similarity with other written works, using similarity detection software that is connected with the SEB LU Study Information System;
- 9. to transfer to the University of Ljubljana free of charge, non-exclusively, geographically and time-wise unlimited the right of saving this written final work of studies in the electronic form, the right of its reproduction, as well as the right of making this written final work of studies available to the public on the World Wide Web via the Repository of the University of Ljubljana;
- 10. my consent to publication of my personal data that are included in this written final work of studies and in this declaration, when this written final work of studies is published.

Ljubljana, _

(Month in words / Day / Year, e. g. June 1st, 2012 Author's signature: _____

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION	1
1. LITERATURE REVIEW	3
1.1 Approaches in Forecasting Methods	5
1.2 Dimensions in Forecasting Models	6
2. <u>A REVIEW OF METHODS FOR FORECASTING OF DEMAN</u>	ID, COST AND
SALES PRICE OF A PRODUCT	7
2.1 <u>Qualitative Methods in Demand Forecasting</u>	8
2.2 Quantitative Methods in Demand Forecasting	12
2.3 Cost Forecasting	14
2.3.1 <u>Qualitative Techniques in Cost Forecasting</u>	16
2.3.2 Quantitative Techniques in Cost Forecasting	17
2.4 Price Forecasting	18
3. AN INTEGRATED FORECASTING MODEL	20
4. <u>OPERATION RESEARCH METHODS</u>	23
4.1 Linear Programming (LP)	25
4.2 Making a Mathematical Model by Linear Programming	27
5. <u>CREATING AN INTEGRATED FORECASTING MODEL BY</u>	
COMBINATION OF LINEAR PROGRAMMING AND COST-	VOLUME-
PROFIT (CVP) ANALYSIS	29
5.1 Cost-Volume-Profit (CVP) Analysis	
5.2 <u>The Final Model</u>	33
5.3 Analysis of the Model	41
5.4 Analysis of Accuracy of the Model	
5.4.1 Comparison of this Model with Neoclassical Model (Profit	<u>Maximizing</u>
<u>Model)</u>	44
5.4.2 Baumol's Single-Period (Sales-Maximising Model)	45
6. EXTENSION OF THIS MODEL	45
6.1 Application of the Model in Dynamic-pricing (Game Theory Mo	<u>del)</u> 45
6.2 Application of the Model in Price Discrimination	46
6.3 Application of this Model in Pricing on a Duopoly Market	47

6.4. Application of this Model in Peak-load Pricing	47
<u>CONCLUSION</u>	48
<u>REFERENCE LIST</u>	49
APPENDICES	62

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1: Different Concepts and Methods in Costing1	5
Figure 2: Summary of Methods, Approaches and Techniques for Definition Tolerance of	of
Variables, and Constraints2	20
Figure 3: Procedures of Evaluation in the Forecasting Models2	2
Figure 4: Approaches in the Forecasting Models2	23
Figure 5: Operation Research Techniques2	24
Figure 6: Processes of Creation of a Model	25
Figure 7: Graphical Description of this Mathematical Model2	9
Figure 8: The Number of Goods Sold Variable (Level of Output in a Given Time Period	1)
is Influenced by these Dynamic Factors	0
Figure 9: The Costs are Influenced by these Dynamic Factors	31
Figure 10: Area of Making a Decision	4
Figure 11: The Price of per Gallon of Retail Gasoline	7
Figure 12: Variable and Fixed Costs of Gasoline	8
Figure 13: The Result of this Model (Case Study)4	0
Figure 14. The Area of Making a Decision by Traditional and Presented Model4	.3

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1: Summary of Dimensions for Forecasting Methods7
Table 2: Summary of Advantages and Disadvantages of Selected Qualitative
Methods11

<u>Table 3</u> : Summary of Advantages and Disadvantages of Selected Quantitative	
Methods	13
Table 4: The factors which Influence the Cost of Crude Oil	35
Table 5: The Output of the Mathematical Model	40

LIST OF APPENDICES

<u>Appendix 1</u> :	Summary in the Slovenian language1
Appendix 2:	Components and Annual Gasoline and Crude Oil Prices between 2017 and
	2021 in the United States of America2
Appendix 3:	The Retail Gasoline Price in the United States of America3
Appendix 4:	Information about Gasoline Consumption between 1994 and 2017 in the
	United States of America4
Appendix 5:	The Total Retail Sales and Price by Refiners between 1991 and 2019 in the
	United State of America5
<u>Appendix 6</u> :	The Result of the Regression of Gasoline Retail Sales and price between
	1994 and 2017 in the United States of America
Appendix 7:	The Codes of this Mathematical Model in the MATLAB for the Calculation
	of the Result (Case Study)7

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

CVP – Cost-Volume-Profit Analysis
LP – Linear Programming Models
APP – Aggregating Production Planning
MILGP – Mixed-integer Linear Goal Programming
ANN – Artificial Neural Network
ML – Machine Learning
UPC – Universal Product Code
ABC – Activity-Based Costing
ARIMA – Autoregressive Integrated Moving Average
GARCH – Generalized Autoregressive Conditional Heteroscedasticity

- **OR** Operation Research
- **PORS** The Princeton Operations Research Society
- **GDP** Gross Domestic Product
- **OPEC** Organization of the Petroleum Exporting Countries
- OECD The Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development
- WTI West Texas Intermediate
- USA United States of America
- **EIA** Energy Information Administration
- **BA** Business Analytics

INTRODUCTION

For many of the world's most successful firms, business analytics (BA) is an essential component. However, the definition of business analytics can be rather ambiguous, and it is always changing. BA is a set of methods, skills, technology, and applications for analyzing and investigating business performance in order to achieve strategic structuring and decision making in the future. BA assists businesses in determining future trends, and businesses use this knowledge to develop unique new products and ideas that enable them to stay ahead of the competition by attracting a large number of customers. Business analytics is the act of acquiring, analyzing, and deriving useful conclusions from massive amounts of data. In today's volatile market, businesses of all sizes are utilizing analytics tools to make better decisions. Decision making is a critical phase that can make or break a company's aims (Das, S., Singh., P & Puri., G, 2017).

All businesses strive for profitability, and without it, they will fail to survive in the long run. Better decision making leads to better profits, and in-context decision making is the only method to optimize the results. Profit is a useful metric for determining a company's performance, and it is dependent on a variety of factors such as income, cost of goods produced, and purchase price, and other factors that influence a company's profitability (Kenton, 2019). The term 'profit' refers to the difference between sales and costs. In order for a company to maximize profits, either the sales value or the cost value must increase, with marginal revenue equaling marginal cost. If we discover a way to increase sales value, we can do it by either increasing product selling prices (maximizing margin) or expanding total sales (sales maximization). Profit maximization has the goal of lowering risk and uncertainty in corporate choices and operations. As a result, the firm's primary goal boosts productivity and efficiency and proper organizational frameworks and management practices have a significant effect on firm efficiency, just as they do on profitability (Goddard, J., Tavakoli, M. & Wilson, J. O. S, 2009). Furthermore, profitability has a direct link to firm success, which plays a critical role in the growth of every company (Fernández & Palazuelos, 2018).

A continual improvement over the business process has a beneficial impact on profitability due to a constantly evolving business climate (Kumar & Harms, 2004). Furthermore, integrating business planning, forecasting, and process management increases firm efficiency because it allows for continuous collaboration with rapid market, sector, and company changes (Pal Singh Toor & Dhir, 2011). In the industries, forecasting approaches are an effective tool for maximizing profits in these processes (Schuh, G., Prote, J.-P., Luckert, M., Hünnekes, P., & Schmidhuber, M, 2019). Recognizing requirements, constraints, risks, and complex variables, and then using them to predict profitability, are important elements. Forecasting models should also be

trustworthy, actionable, and combined with quantitative and quantitative approaches (Caniato F, Kalchschmidt M & Ronchi S, 2011). For profit maximization, it is critical to make the right decision about objective and subjective approaches (Stekler, 2015). In economics, producers (also known as firms or companies) are involved in the use of inputs (various factors of production) and the production of commodities and services (output). Firms are critical in selecting what to create and how to generate it and the main objectives of firms are (Khan, 2017):

- Profit maximization.
- Sales maximization.
- Increased market share/market dominance.
- Social/environmental concerns.
- Profit satisficing.
- Co-operatives.

The concept of profit maximization is an important goal for businesses in terms of planning, but establishing this number is challenging due to the difficulties of determining the concepts of marginal revenue (MR) and cost (MC). As a result, calculating the equilibrium point is challenging when these points (MR, MC) are ambiguous or difficult to detect. However, even if managers can decide on these issues, there are still other hurdles to overcome before making a decision. Market, business, and corporate limits and circumstances, for example, limit the decision-making area, and these points (MR, MC, and equilibrium point) are ignored when identifying optimum and then profit-maximizing locations but forecasting techniques were created to assist businesses in making decisions.

When a forecasting approach may reduce the gap between forecast and real values, it improves the precision of the industrial planning process (Haraguchi, Cheng & Smeets, 2017). The most important reasons for ineffective forecasting models are market uncertainty and volatility (Rieg, 2010). When the parameters are facilitated in interaction with forecasting methods in planning, particularly in a context of high uncertainty, forecast accuracy indicators can improve planning efficiency. The items include (Fildes et al., 2015):

- Organizational constraints and the flow of information
- Limited resources
- Combining statistical methods with managerial judgment
- Performance evaluation and monitoring

The aim of this research is to improve the accuracy of profit forecasting by incorporating predictions of profit-influencing factors into Cost-Volume-Profit (CVP) Analysis and Linear Programming Models (LP) for profit maximization. In this master's thesis, a supplementary mathematical model for profit maximization is created instead of existing

forecasting methods. It is based on a complementary mathematical model that takes into account both factors that affect profit maximization in order to enhance forecasting methods. This model is based on the Cost-Volume-Profit (CVP) and Linear Programming (LP) methodologies, and it has four variables: the amount of goods sold, fixed costs, variable cost per unit, and sales price, as well as all business, sector, and company-level factors that affect variables. They can be associated in this model and then have an effect on profit maximization calculations. CVP (Cost-Volume-Profit) is a tool for determining a business environment that can be used in both manufacturing and service businesses. The master's thesis demonstrates how to improve decision-making and profitability by combining Linear Programming and Cost-Volume-Profit (CVP) methods (Lulaj & Iseni, 2018).

The first chapter provides a summary of the various forecasting tools, approaches, and techniques used in business processes. The second chapter then discusses the various techniques in terms of qualitative and qualitative approaches. The logics that underpin an integrated forecasting model are discussed in the third chapter, and the fourth chapter introduces a mathematical model based on Linear Programming (LP) and Cost-Volume-Benefit (CVP) for profit maximization. Finally, MATLAB tests this model as a study in the gasoline market in the United States of America to demonstrate how this model can be used in practice in the last chapter. Furthermore, the model's implementation is debated in terms of competitive pricing, price discrimination, pricing on a duopoly market, and peak-load pricing.

1 LITERATURE REVIEW

Forecasting models are divided into two groups in academic literature: quantitative (statistical) and qualitative (judgmental) approaches. When a forecasting model blends two methods for making a decision, it becomes more reliable. At the industry level, combining quantitative and qualitative methods will improve forecasting accuracy (Caniato et al., 2011). If a forecasting model in the business process can predict these variables, such as the number of goods sold, fixed costs, variable cost per unit, and sales price, when taking into account market, sector, and company constraints, as well as dynamic factors that have an effect on variables and correlations between parameters in a model using qualitative and quantitative approaches, then it is considered effective. Since all parameters interconnect in one model for prediction, it can improve the accuracy of a model in a business method (Stastny & Lehner, 2018).

Furthermore, for the prediction and computation of profitability in a business operation, variables such as total cost and revenue, as well as factors that have an effect on variables and constraints at the market, sector, and firm level, are considered. Many studies have shown that there is a strong link between cost, revenue, and profitability (Christopher,

2002a, 2002b; Fontaine, 2004). Furthermore, for improved profitability, rising revenue as well as lowering costs in a system must be considered, with a balance of correlation between variables such as cost and revenue. Using strategic management accounting strategies, cost forecasting, revenue, and profit over a business process with financial and non-financial details have a positive effect on a company's performance and competitive advantage (Abdelmoneim Mohamed & Jones, 2014). In modern production planning, aggregating Production Planning (APP) with the goals of reducing costs, optimizing sales, and then maximizing profit is a top priority. Robust Optimization, Simple Linear Programming, Stochastic Programming, Pre-emptive GP, Mixed-integer Linear Goal Programming (MILGP), Mathematical, Robust Optimization/ mixed Integer Nonlinear Programming, Fuzzy Mathematical, Game Theory, and other methods that increase optimization and then profitability in a business process have all been used to boost APP (Cheraghalikhani, A., Khoshalhan, F & Mokhtari, H, 2019). An intended goal is to improve optimization by determining the optimal amounts of profit maximization components using a mathematical model that takes into account variables such as controllable and uncontrollable, financial and non-financial, interior and exterior parameters that have an effect on components in a market, business, and firm level, and alignment between the production system and business process. Predictive analytics plays a big role in determining whether to use quantitative or qualitative approaches to estimate past and future patterns, as well as how to use them (Waller & Fawcett, 2013; Schoenherr & Speier-Pero, 2015). Because of the importance of interconnection between forecasting models and profitability, stochastic programming was used to increase profitability in the form of linear programming models (Suvrajeet Sen, 1999; Birge & Louveaux, 1997; Kall & Mayer, 2005) and robust optimization (Mulvey J.M., R. Vanderbei, S. Zenios, 1995). There are gaps in the literature between managerial decision-making and economic theories focused on linear programming and mathematical models (Dowling, 1992; Dwivedi, 2008) and linear programming for multi-layer, multi-product reverse supply chain cost minimization in industrial sectors (Mahmoudi & Fazlollahtabar, 2014). Dowling (Dowling, 1992) addressed an advocate of linear programming (LP) for using many inequality constraints for optimization, which was then applied in business decision-making to optimize resource allocation (Dwivedi, 2008). Many studies have looked at how to improve resource management in manufacturing industries by using linear programming (Mechleri & Arellano-Garcia, 2018; Li et al., 2006; Magsood et al. 2004). Decision variables, environmental parameters, and results were the three components of linear programming models as an essential tool in profit optimization, with the first and second components being uncontrollable and the last one being dependent (Dantzig, 1998; Dwivedi, 2008) and another researcher worked on maximization of total income by the use of linear programming for the integration of various departments that are dependent on production system management (Adeyemo, J. & F. Otiero. F, 2009). According to studies, LP is important and successful in the maintenance phase of manufacturing companies, and it is one of the top-ranking techniques of operation research in the case of modeling economic impact (Paris, 2016). The use of LP was used to develop a specific algorithm for optimizing energy recovery resilience (He, Ng & Su, 2017). LP is also used in the optimization of residential energy systems for surveying and planning the optimum investment in this sector (Lauinger, D., Caliandro, P., Van herle, J., & Kuhn, D, 2016) in order to boost long-term profitability of businesses. Before going any further, it's important to understand that total cost and revenue are two pillars of profit that must be calculated as part of a Cost-Volume-Profit (CVP) analysis. Time series forecasting models are used for demand forecasting, which has a direct effect on profitability. Furthermore, since historical data is uncorrelated, previous data is useless for forecasting, and experts are unable to forecast (Firmino, P. R. A., de Mattos Neto, P. S. G., & Ferreira, T. A. E, 2015). Factors that constantly change markets should be considered as a parameter in forecasting models to increase predictability (Thomson, M. E., Pollock, A. C., Önkal, D., & Gönül, M. S. 2019). This production method has a stronger outcome in terms of profitability when the number of goods sold is the same as the production volume based on just-in-time reasoning for removing the cost of inventory, which can be considered in a Cost-Volume-Profit (CVP) analysis (Fullerton & McWatters, 2001). The market positioning of goods on competitive markets is a prominent and controversial topic in terms of pricing, which is another dynamic principle for making a decision. Pricing a product is difficult because it is dependent on product supply and demand, which makes the pricing system more complex (Sen, 2014). Total revenue is measured using the sales price, the number of goods sold, and the total cost, while cost is determined using fixed costs and variable cost per unit compounded by the number of goods sold (or production volume if the "just in time" principle is used).

1.1 Approaches in Forecasting Methods

One of the significant sections of profit maximization is the forecasting of these variables as systematic guesses of future events (Kurzaki, 2012; Fildes, 2008). Many features of forecasting exist, such as the planning process and the relationship between it and future events. A research that looked at the sales behavior of a medium-sized business using two models, namely Artificial Neural Networks (ANN) and the time series forecasting model, found that ANN is more reliable than time series because it takes into account unpredictable circumstances when making decisions. Many businesses have struggled in these complex and competitive markets due to a lack of reliable forecasting. Moreover, reliable forecasting has a close relationship with planning, which reduces the risks of volatility and plans a better combination of different types of labors, balanced work-load, reduction of production fluctuation, optimization of production facilities, better inventory management, better customer service, and better use of capital and resources with facility design. Forecasting demand is one of the most critical criteria that businesses must consider. It is better than forecasting that the output volume will be the same as the market

demand, providing the possibility of warehousing cost savings, based on just-in-time theory and optimum production volume. Other costs associated with overproduction would be minimized as well (Aradhye & Kallurkar, 2014). Furthermore, many methods and techniques for estimation of important variables in production processes, such as econometric (Indirect Approach) and non-econometric (Direct Approach) techniques, have been used to estimate the variable at different times (Perera, H. N., Hurley, J., Fahimnia, B., & Reisi, M, 2019).

1.2 Dimensions in Forecasting Models

Forecasting models can be classified into two classes, both of which contain quantitative and qualitative methodologies, as stated before in this section. Aside from the two categories for classifying forecasting strategies, Table 1 lists a number of other (objective and subjective) approaches with a variety of dimensions. When we talk about objective methods, we're talking about global methods, which consider all available time series to estimate model parameters all at once, while local methods only consider specific time series for estimation. To put it another way, global methods jointly survey a forecasting problem, while local methods do so independently. When it comes to probabilistic and point forecasting, probabilistic forecasts offer an estimate for all potential future outcomes of a random variable, while point forecasts only consider one prediction. As a result, in most mathematical disciplines, linear and non-linear forms such as convexity and linearity can be used to approximate forecasting methods. In terms of subjective approaches, a data-driven approach is associated with Machine Learning (ML), which entails developing an algorithm for data connection and correlation. The model-driven approach, on the other hand, focuses on gaining a thorough understanding of a system or method. To differentiate between single and complex approaches, the ensemble and single models are used. Where there are multiple forecasting models, the ensemble method attempts to incorporate the multiple models as single-based approaches for improved forecasting, resulting in less forecasting errors (Rokach, 2010). In terms of the distinction between generative and discriminative approaches, the generative approach focuses on top-down models, while the discriminative approach focuses on bottom-up models, as described in statistics and machine learning. The last dimension, in terms of subjective category and explanatory, precisely explains what is occurring, while interpretable predicts what will occur. Forecasters can use subjective forecasting to predict outcomes based on their own opinions and feelings. Subjective forecasting relies on brainstorming sessions to create ideas and solve problems in a nonjudgmental, peerpressure-free environment. When time restrictions prevent objective forecasting, these sessions are frequently used. Decision-makers should be suspicious of subjective forecasts since they are vulnerable to biases.

Category	Dimension
Objective	Global vs. Local Methods Probabilistic vs. Point Forecasts Computational Convexity Linearity & Convexity
Subjective	Data-driven vs. Model-driven Ensemble vs. Single Models Discriminative vs. Generative Statistical Guarantees Explanatory/Interpretable vs. Predictive

Table 1: Summary of Dimensions for Forecasting Methods.

Source: Januschowski et al. (2019).

2 A REVIEW OF METHODS FOR FORECASTING OF DEMAND, COST AND SALES PRICE OF A PRODUCT

For forecasting, there are two types of models: qualitative and quantitative models, which are briefly described in this section. When it comes to qualitative models, the models' characteristics are based on human judgment, opinions, and are subjective and nonmathematical, but they do have strengths and weaknesses. These models have the ability to adapt to recent changes in the environment, which is one of their advantages. The following are some examples of qualitative methods:

- 1. Survey Method
- 2. Complete Enumeration Method
- 3. End-user Method of Consumers (user expectation method) Survey
 - 4. Consensus Methods:
- 4.1 Expert's Opinion Poll,
- 4.2 Reasoned opinion Delphi Technique
 - 5. Market Experimental Method:
- 5.1 Customer Surveys
- 5.2 Consumer Panels
- 5.3 Test Marketing
- 5.4 Scanner Panel Data

Qualitative approaches, on the other hand, can bias the forecast and reduce the accuracy of forecasting models. These models for prediction based on an interview, discussion, and observation include unstructured data and subjective conclusions. In this section, you'll find a list of various quantitative analysis methods (Carrasco & Lucas, 2015). Among the quantitative approaches are:

- 1. Time Series and Trends
- 2. Barometric Techniques or Lead-Lag Indicators Method
- 3. Correlation and Regression and the Method
- 4. Compound Growth Rate
- 5. Moving Average Method
- 6. Simultaneous Equations Method

2.1 Qualitative Methods in Demand Forecasting

The survey method is a direct methodology that is used by a business to forecast potential customer demand by predicting market demand based on a statement of one or more groups for making a decision. Many techniques of the surveying method are explained in this section of the collection of methods (Holdsworth, J. C., Hartill, B. W., Heinemann, A., & Wynne-Jones, J, 2018). In contrast to other types of qualitative research, the complete enumeration method is a comprehensive survey of all members of the entire population, which can be identified as customers, consumers, and other criteria that are used for calculation. However, the method has major problems with data collection and surveying when businesses must quantify a large number of customers, consumers, and goods in markets and industries. Besides that, the system and procedure are timeconsuming and inefficient since the forecaster is unable to collect data from all customers for review. Furthermore, correctly collecting data from all representatives of the entire population is impossible. Last but not least, consumer behavior has been evolving all the time, and many times, consumers do not have enough knowledge about their potential actions because they change their behaviors in response to changing market, industry, and/or company conditions (Aultman-Hall, L., LaMondia, J. J., Ullman, H., & Suender, M, 2018). By comparing the sample survey approach to the previous method, researchers consider a few consuming units and the data collection is less expensive. Furthermore, selecting and analyzing a sample is much simpler than analyzing the entire population. Furthermore, this survey allows researchers to make less data errors. The model, on the other hand, is not comprehensive and does not survey the entire population. Predictions are based solely on the opinions of samples, and if the sample is not chosen in such a way as to reflect the entire population, false predictions will result (Cassel & Lyberg, 2001). Consumers use the end-user approach (user expectation method) to survey customer intentions in order to forecast future demand. This model includes a product end-user, but how do companies find end-users for measurement when industry data isn't readily available, which is a complex problem, particularly for consumer goods? Another issue with these forecasting models is the shift between customers and non-users of the product or service, since consumers cannot predict their future actions in competitive markets. Dynamic variables are shaping end-user behaviors in the marketplace, as mentioned previously, but companies have not used these forecasting models (Abdar & Yen, 2018). Consensus methods are a bottom-up survey technique that is known as qualitative methods for forecasting as an alternative tool for forecasting. They start with a small group and expand from there.

Expert opinion polling and the Delphi methodology are two approaches for reaching a consensus. The expert opinion poll methods are based on a selection of expert opinions from people who know a lot about the market, sales representatives, business, and/or organization. Customers are directly connected to the groups, allowing them to consider how they respond to market changes. While the models are more realistic because they understand the market's practical dynamic variables, they have a number of flaws and severe limitations. In reality, the method's reliability is determined by the researchers' abilities and knowledge. Another significant issue is assessors' subjective judgment. Besides this, there are issues with consumers' and markets' confidence in these experts and their evaluations, moving qualitative to quantitative data for decision-making, finding the right marketplace, consumer, and answer in the right time, only considering users and not non-users, and so on (Ivanova, Z., Pichugin, I., & Naimaviciene, J, 2015).

Delphi techniques are a form of systematic forecasting that depends on a group of experts. Experts replied to questioners, who were then summarized by facilitators for clarity of responses. For taking expert input, the procedure is repeated more than twice. The Delphi method is an exploratory method that prioritizes qualitative responses over quantitative ones. In other words, as the process of achieving consensus progresses, the variability of responses decreases. Furthermore, with the repetition of the procedure, the approach aims to find a consensus in an uncertain zone. The method itself has significant performance limitations, such as:

- Selection of right experts
- Creation of appropriate and high-quality questions
- Extraction of the right response from questionnaire
- No comprehensive method
- Relying on experts, no customers, and users
- Unstable market situation
- In this process, no dynamic factors are taken into account, and only expert opinions are taken into account. (Rowe & Wright, 1999).

The market experimental approach conducts experiments with a selection of influential knowledge about the current and potential demand for the commodity in response to changes in market conditions. The approach analyzes the effect of substitution and other parameters on consumer behavior in a particular segment of the population, as well as different income levels and consumer preferences. Consumer survey as a market experimental method includes a survey of potential Furthermore, demand is forecasted based on price changes as well as other factors such as expenditure. Customers may be surveyed using a variety of market analysis methods, such as individual customer surveys, user panels, test marketing, and scanner panel data (Ryals & Wilson, 2005). Customers are interviewed over the internet, on social media, in online gaming forums, and/or in shopping malls, among other methods. For the purpose of forecasting potential sales, researchers are collecting information about their interest in buying the product. In fact, forecasters use the method to learn about the product's attractiveness and unattractiveness, and then use that information to predict future demand (Eigenraam, A. W., Eelen, J., van Lin, A., & Verlegh, P. W. J, 2018).

In consumer panels, which is another form of grouping, prospective consumers are grouped together in one room and then begin to talk about the product after using it. The organization is limited in size, and the corporation provides several incentives in return for participation. Consumer panels are more useful for identifying product characteristics than for forecasting demand (Song, M., Park, E., Yoo, B., & Jeon, S, 2016; Valkila, N., Litja, H., Aalto, L., & Saari, A, 2010).

Test marketing, as a market research tool, is concerned with the introduction of a new product into a specific geographic segmentation. After positioning the product on a particular market, the representatives monitor and evaluate the demand for and exposure of the product once it has been launchedIt is a popular method of sales forecasting for businesses prior to launching a large-scale product. Consumer products, such as sales-wave analysis, simulated test marketing, regulated test marketing, test markets, and industrial goods, such as Alpha testing and Beta testing, all use the test marketing approach for demand forecasting (Carlson, 2013).

The scanner panel data procedure is based on a valuable database of observed consumer purchasing behavior that is captured at checkout by UPC codes and optical scanners. The database contains useful information about products, sizes, prices, and other variables that are useful surveying parameters.

The other aspects of the supply chain are not included in this study because data is only collected from groceries and checkout devices (Castellari, E., Moro, D., Platoni, S., & Sckokai, P, 2018), and these methods have several advantages and drawbacks, which are mentioned in Table 2.

Methods	Advantages	Disadvantages
	A small number of	Prediction is based on a
	consuming units is	sample of observations; it is
Sample Survey	considered, which is less	not a systematic process, and
	expensive and time-	market variations are not
	consuming than analyzing all	included in the output.
	populations.	
	It is a systematic study	It's very expensive because
	because it considers all	the process requires collecting
Complete Enumeration	samples, in contrast to any	data from all users for
Method	sampling approach that only	analysis, which is impossible
	surveys a small portion of the	because there's a lot of data to
	entire population.	collect.
	It's an effective way to focus	The model's goal is to find
	on consumers and end-users.	end-users of a product, but
End-user Method of		finding them can be difficult,
Consumers (user		so it simply makes a decision
expectation method)		based on its performance.
Survey		Customers are also modifying
		their attitudes as a result of the
		factors that influence their
		intentions.
	The models are based on a	The method's reliability is
	selection of expert opinions	determined by the researchers'
	from people who know	abilities. If experts are poor in
	enough about the business to	this region, the output and
Consensus Methods	be able to survey it. The	decision-making based on
(Expert's opinion poll,	benefit of these surveys is	their opinions will be a
reasoned opinion – Delphi	that they take into account the	problem for forecasting.
technique.)	opinions of experts with	
	sufficient knowledge and	
	experience of business and	
	industry dynamics.	
	The model's benefit is that it	rite dusiness situation is
Market Experimental	collects key information	evolving. In this approach there
Method	about a product's current and	is a high risk of human error. and
(Customer surveys,	potential demand, taking into	participants will influence the
consumer panels, test	consideration current market	current situation. The
marketing, and scanner	t conditions when forecasting.	development of an implausible
panel data)	It can also be paired with	scenario based on a tainted and
	other forecasting methods.	incorrect judgment.

Table 2: Summary of Advantages and Disadvantages of Selected Qualitative Methods.

Source: Own work.

2.2 Quantitative Methods in Demand Forecasting

These models are focused on mathematical equations and numerical data, with a more objective approach. The model can deal with a lot of data and knowledge, as well as structured data, statistical analysis, and objective conclusions, but the lack of quantitative models is a flaw. In general, there are a variety of quantitative models that can predict performance based on historical data, and these models are mentioned in Table 3. (Rutberg& Bouikidis, 2018).

As a quantitative model, time series and trends are based on the compilation of a sequence of observations (numerical data) at frequent and informal intervals over time. One of the method's assumptions is that the past will repeat itself in the future, necessitating a set of data for forecasting, but the method has both advantages and disadvantages for forecasting. In terms of advantage, it does not require any assumption on underlying activity (economic knowledge) for forecasting, and in terms of disadvantage, it is a methodology better suited to short-term forecasts than long-term forecasts. Finally, secular trends, seasonal variation, cyclical variation, and irregular variation are all included in the process. There are many different types of trends that can appear on a time-series graph, including the straight line, exponential line, and quadratic line (Lim, 2018). When it comes to barometric techniques, also known as the Lead-Lag indicators system, the method forecasts future demand using historical data from the product and economic indicators. The product's future trends are clarified by economic indicators, and demand is forecasted based on movement in the index of economic indicators. Many indicators are included, including leading, coincidental, and lagging indicators (Jugović A, Hess S, Poletan Jugović T, 2012).

Another approach is correlation and regression, which examines the statistical relationship between two variables or groups of data. Correlation slopes are negative or positive, and a straight line is used to estimate correlations between variables between one dependent variable and one or more independent variables. The second approach uses statistical analysis to demonstrate the effect of adjusting independent variables on a dependent variable. Regression analysis methods include linear regression, ordinary least squares, logistic regression, lasso regression, elastic net regression, and others (Hribar, R., Potočnik, P., Šilc, J., & Papa, G ,2019).

A mathematical formula with the name of the compound growth rate can also be used for demand forecasting over a specific timeframe. The formula calculates the value at the end of the measurement using a constant growth rate and the sum of value at the start of a given period. Actually, the approach has a wide range of applications that can be discussed, including communicating average investment fund returns and comparing investment advisor results. Forecasting future values of a data series is another popular application of this approach. Last but not least, it can examine trends in a variety of business metrics such as revenue, market share, costs, and efficiency over time (Jagerson, 2018), but it does so using a constant growth rate. Another technique for demand forecasting is the moving average method, which is used for technical analysis with the help of historical data when there is a pattern.

Simple moving average and exponential moving average are two common moving average strategies. Simple moving average accounts for a simple average of all given numbers and gives more weight to recent numbers in turn. If there are two unknown variables in one equation that cannot be solved by a single solution, the simultaneous equation approach can be used to solve the problem using two equations. There are many types of methods for solving equations, including reduction, substitution, and using a straight-line graph (Yang & Lee, 2018).

Methods	Advantages	Disadvantages
Time Series and Trends	For forecasting, the technique makes a decision based on a series of numerical data over a period of time and does not require economic expertise.	For forecasting, a set of data is needed, and if one is not usable, the model will be useless. Furthermore, the method is suitable for the short-term but not for the long-term.
Correlation and Regression and the Method	Forecasting future results, or making projections and forecasts, is one of the most popular applications for these techniques. Another advantage of these forecasting methods that can evaluate the outcomes and correct errors is that they can improve business performance by supporting business decisions.	On the other hand, there are several flaws in the methods, such as poor data, human error, and incorrect queries, and regression is vulnerable to outliers because they can have a significant impact on the regression.
Compound Growth Rate	The compound growth rate is an effective tool for evaluating the performance of various portfolios, as well as a stock's performance in relation to other stocks in a market forecast.	Since there is a constant rate in this technique, the fact can often vary from the expectation since volatility will alter the trends of a rational assumption. Furthermore, historical data and trends are not always

Table 3: Summary of Advantages and Disadvantages of Selected Quantitative Methods.

		accurate forecasting sources,
		which the model relies on.
	The model can be used to	The approach is not
	calculate both linear and non-	applicable for a limited period
	linear trends for any	of time, despite the fact that
Moving Average Method	sequence. Besides that, this	trend values are not available
	approach provides a	for certain periods.
	smoothed graph, which is a	
	significant benefit.	
	When there are two unknown	When data has aggregated
	variables in a single equation	quantities, the consistency of
Simultaneous Equations	and no single solution can	the simultaneous equation
Method	solve the problem, the model	approach is called into
(Using a straight line graph,	comes in handy. The	question.
solution by elimination,	approach could be used, for	
solution by substitution)	example, where there are	
	supply and demand	
	calculations in a commodity	
	market.	

Source: Own work.

2.3 Cost Forecasting

Cost can refer to the amount of money, time, and labor that is needed to spend on products or services, and cost in business, retail, and accounting is the sum of money spent on producing something or acquiring something during the business process (Bertoni & Bertoni, 2018). Over the course of a business operation, costs are broken down into fixed and variable costs, direct and indirect costs, long-term and short-term costs, and so on fixed costs do not fluctuate with changes in production; in fact, even if the business has no output, it must pay this expense. Fixed costs include, for example, the procurement of supplies, executive salaries, the leasing of a manufacturing site extension, and these specific costs. Variable cost, on the other hand, is affected by the level of output and is most closely linked to material costs; additionally, both are variable in the long run as output rises (Novák & Popesko, 2014).

Direct costs in a production system, such as material costs and labor costs, are traceable, while indirect costs, such as energy, are untraceable or less traceable. Account analysis, engineering method, high-low approach, and linear regression analysis are only a few of the many approaches for estimating overall costs. Total costs in these methods are directly proportional to the amount of output, but accounting costs, which classify all costs as either fixed or variable, is a simple method to compute total costs based on the input costs of each production step as well as fixed costs (Larry & Christopher, 2017). The

engineering approach, as previously discussed, is another method for total cost estimation, and it is the proper method for estimating direct material costs. It is also a method for estimating the total cost of a product when the product has not yet been manufactured and there is no data from the previous processes (Xu et al., 2012). Another approach to estimating total cost based on high and low levels of output is the high-low approach, which determines total cost by taking into account high and low levels of production and calculates total cost using a cost volume formula (Kenton, 2019 Regression analysis is a system of mathematical equations for estimating the best fit line between a set of data points, which is another realistic tool for estimation. Another technique that is similar is the scatter graph method, which takes into consideration more than just the highest and lowest levels of activity. A horizontal x-axis and a vertical yaxis with a representation of production operation and a cost in turns make up the process (Kenton, 2018). Companies can estimate costs using a variety of methods and techniques, including parametric cost estimates, neural networks and expert, function costing, feature costing, and group estimation, all of which are categorized differently in Figure 1.





Source: Walther & Skousen (2009).

Process costing (Wood, 2015), which assigns costs to production units, is one method for mass production of a homogeneous commodity. But in the other hand, an approach known as job-order costing assigns all costs in one particular product for calculation, and this method is suitable for estimating production costs when units of production differ significantly from one another (Bertoni & Bertoni, 2018). It is possible for a manufacturing company to use both processes in its operations. In addition to the previous two strategies, activity-based costing (ABC) defines and organizes operations within a company before assigning costs to each one.

In general, costing terms are divided into two categories: absorption and direct. In terms of absorption, all production costs, including direct materials, direct labor, variable manufacturing costs, and fixed manufacturing costs, have been allocated to the unit's manufactured or finished product. Variable production costs, on the other hand, are only considered in the context of the direct measurement principle. Furthermore, since it only

considers variable costs, the direct costing principle is useful in the short term (Walther & Skousen, 2009). A good business has a strong tie to forecast costs when it comes to cost estimations and forecasting techniques, and this capacity is critical for increasing profitability in the process. In supplement to this topic, the standard of forecasting depends on the company size, sector, equipment, financial system, etc. Besides that, effective cost forecasting is advantageous in terms of production trends, pricing, competitive strategy, potential expenditure, and optimized input and output values (Hatamleh, M. T., Hiyassat, M., Sweis, G. J., & Sweis, R. J, 2018), which is divided into two data analysis techniques.

2.3.1 Qualitative Techniques in Cost Forecasting

When it comes to cost estimation and forecasting techniques, qualitative techniques are the first, with several sub-techniques that are applicable to mainly exploratory analysis, such as expert opinions on potential production costs. Analogous cost estimation for a comparison of two items, such as systems and goods, is one of the sub-techniques. The target product's cost is calculated by comparing it to a comparable product, based on the premise that the costs of similar goods are similar. The back-propagation neural network model is a data processing approach that aims to simplify a complex network structure. Each complex network, according to the method, is made up of basic processing that can be abstracted in a straightforward manner for better forecasting. Back-propagation is a common and simple process that is made up of three layers of neurons: input, multi-layer, and output. The gradient of the error function is determined in relation to the weights of the neural network. As a consequence, the approach is used in forecasting approaches involving the simplification of a complex network and the study of data transformation within a simple process. The input data is represented by the first layer, which is referred to as the input layer, and this approach works by approximating the non-linear relationship between the input and output by assigning weight values in a multi-layer system (Hecht-Nielsen, 1992).

Intuitive approaches, which include case-based techniques and decision support techniques, are other sub-techniques of qualitative techniques. In the case of the first, an approach focused on an exploration of parallels between old and new problems and on previous experience for solving previous problems is attempting to solve a new problem that can be used for cost forecasting based on previous experience. For cost measurement, techniques such as nearest-neighbor indexing, inductive indexing, and intuitive knowledge-based indexing are used in addition to the methodology. The method of

making the best choice between two or more alternatives is addressed by decision support techniques.

Since a decision-maker must forecast the successful parameters and then make a future decision, combining decision-making approaches with forecasting models is necessary. When a model combines forecasting approaches with decision-making strategies, the outcomes are more reliable (Machina, 2005; Hamel, 2018; Moon, 2015; Uyar & Kuzey, 2016; Pradhan, 2010; Schoute, 2009; Kim, 2004; Meigs, 1998).

2.3.2 Quantitative Techniques in Cost Forecasting

Another cornerstone of cost estimation techniques, as mentioned in the previous section, is quantitative techniques, which are divided into two sub-techniques: parametric and analytical techniques. The first technique, called metrics, is based on equations for cost estimation. Historical evidence for cost calculation, such as multiple regression analysis, is one of the existing parametric cost estimation approaches (Gunduz, M., Ugur, L. O., & Ozturk, E, 2011).

Another model, which is dependent on safety stock, predicts production costs based on used stocks and historical production trends. They specifically add an additional 20% to estimate a rising rate of cost. As a result, a manufacturing firm establishes a specific rate of growth based on the previous estimate, and then estimates the cost based on potential unforeseen expenditures (Creighton, 2014; Sthl, 2012).

The parametric technique is a structured estimating method that uses a series of mathematical equations to estimate variables based on past events. There are several alternatives to one analytical technique, such as activity-based cost estimation, operation-based cost estimation, feature-based cost estimation, and the breaks down approach. For estimation, the activity-based method breaks down a product's related costs to the smallest activity level. In other words, the method estimates the cost of a product by breaking down production costs based on activities; if it breaks down based on the operation process, it is called an operation-based approach. Furthermore, the cost of output or commodity is broken down by the type of operating process.

Furthermore, it is called featured based on cost estimate whether it is broken down based on product or development features. Besides that, cost forecasting can be done in a variety of ways, including top-down and bottom-up methods. In terms of the top to down approach, it forecasts costs using historical data, but when more accurate information about the product, demand, and project is available, a bottom-up approach is used to forecast costs (Hueber, 2016). Last but not least, the analogical approach is a tool for cost estimation that relies on historical data. As previously discussed, the regression analysis model is a statistical equation that depicts a relationship between one independent and one dependent variable. It is one of the most widely used and simplest techniques in market research. The method has many key benefits for researchers for usage. For example, the method demonstrates a significant relationship between independent and dependent variables, as well as the relative strength of the relationship and also the effects of independent variables on dependent variables, which researchers can use in market analysis for use in various statistical models for forecasting (Chen, X., Li, H., Liang, H., & Lin, H, 2019).

2.4 Price Forecasting

There are many similarities between market, cost, and demand forecasting methods and approaches; additionally, many techniques have several applications in pricing, cost systems, and demand forecasting. Cost-based pricing as a production cost-based is one of the best and easiest methods for pricing. Full cost and direct cost are two types of calculation methods, but full cost covers fixed costs, variable costs, and a percent markup, while direct cost only includes variable costs and a percent markup.

Companies maximize their output until marginal revenue intersects marginal expense, at which point profit maximization is pursued, and then charge a price based on this forecast. A markup is also the difference between a product's cost and its selling price. The method is one of the easiest methods for price forecasting since it does not require complex calculations and only requires a small amount of data (Zhang & Huang, 2014).

Time series, data mining, and simulation are three types of market forecasting methods that can be used to forecast the price. There are three sub-techniques within the time series category: linear regression, stochastic, and non-heuristic The artificial natural network, which is analogous to neurons in the brain and has three layers for forecasting, was discussed in notes from previous forecasting models. T the approach is used to forecast prices by analyzing the relationship between input and output variables (Tealab, 2018). Another time series strategy that is applicable to stochastic characters for short-term planning is the use of time series. Jumped diffusion (Hess, 2017) and geometric Brownian motion are the models used in this group. In reality, in option pricing, jump-diffusion uses last historical movement prices for forecasting future prices, as well as a combination of a jump and a diffusion mechanism. (Prakasa, 2016).

Regarding the third technique, autoregressive integrated moving average (ARIMA) is a common time series forecasting tool used in the gas and oil industries for price forecasting. As a practical technique, many countries such as Norway and Spain have

used it and obtained reasonable results. The model has three parameters: x, y, and z, with x denoting an autoregressive model, y denoting the degree of difference, and z denoting a moving-average model. Positive integers are used in the parameters, as well as seasonal and non-seasonal versions (Ohyver & Pudjihastuti, 2018).

Another technique in this group is generalized autoregressive conditional heteroscedasticity (GARCH), which is used when the variance or volatility of a sequence changes over time (Hafner & Herwartz, 2001). In terms of data mining, which is a subcategory of price forecasting methods, the method has applications in travel, electricity, stock, home, and commodity price forecasting as a process of transforming a large amount of data into effective and usable knowledge for use in operating systems, for instance, production lines, product development in marketing, data dredging for investigations into low-quality research papers with weak hypotheses, and artificial intelligence. It's also a tool for finding patterns in a vast amount of data and then using those patterns to create an information system (Yang, 2019).

Fuzzy logic is a data mining method that has been used in a variety of projects and industries. The techniques, in reality, are the polar opposite of true or false logic (binary system (1 or 0) and attempt to operate on the basis of degrees of truth. Another description of the technique is the manipulation of ambiguous knowledge about degrees of fact. According to the process, there are millions of numbers between 0 and 1 that can be used to describe unknown data (Al-Mousa & Faza, 2019). Another mining methodology is concerned with the estimation of nonlinear variables that are difficult to predict. Climate change, weather, the stock market, and the IT mechanism all use chaos theory to forecast complex variables. The stock market is a good example of a chaotic market. When the value of a stock begins to fluctuate, the number of people interested in selling or purchasing the stock increases, causing the stock market's value to rise and fall. Initial state, a series of equations, mathematical models and simulations that are described functions of the system, and final condition are the three parts of the model. This is a chaotic system if the outcome is entirely different from another result; otherwise, it is a non-chaotic system (Klioutchnikov, 2017).

Game theory as an analogical method for estimation (Kreye, M., Goh, Y.M., Newnes, L.B, 2009) is an interconnection technique between companies for making a decision, as stated in the last category. As a result, one organization makes a strategic decision based on the strategy of another, and the approach helps businesses make strategic decisions. Game theory can also be applied to economics, industry, finance, and politics. In terms of the method's application in pricing strategy, game theory players make decisions on various strategies based on their outcomes. Pure strategy is used when players try to maximize profit and outcomes, but mixed tactics are used when they want to take the best possible result. As a result, Nash equilibrium refers to the point at which neither player will change their pricing strategies (Sepahi Chavoshlou, A., Arshadi Khamseh, A., & Naderi, B, 2018). Taking all from chapter two into account, all of the techniques listed

will assist in defining tolerances for variables and constraints such as the amount of products produced (as production volumes), fixed costs, variable cost per item, and sales price, and then this model is presented as a complement to all of the methods and techniques that have been described. Figure 2 summarizes all approaches, procedures, and strategies for easy reference.

Figure 2: Summary of Methods, Approaches and Techniques for Definition Tolerance of Variables, and Constraints.

These methods may be used to define a price tolerance for this supplementary mathematical model.	Cost-Based Pricing, Time Series, Data Mining, Simulation, Linear Regression, Stochastic and Non-Heuristic, Artificial Natural Network, Stochastic Characters, Jump Diffusion, ARIMA, Generalized Autoregressive Conditional Heteroskedasticity (GARCH), Data Mining, Fuzzy Logic, Chaos Theory, Game theory, etc.
For this supplementary mathematical model, these methods may describe demand tolerance.	Complete Enumeration Method, Sample Survey Method, End- user Method of Consumers (User Expectation Method) Survey, Consensus Methods, Experts Opinion Poll, Reasoned Opinion – Delphi Technique, Market Experimental Method, Customer Surveys, Consumer Panels, Test Marketing, and Scanner Panel Data, Barometric Techniques or Lead-Lag Indicators Method, Correlation and Regression and the method, Compound Growth Rate, Moving Average Method, Simultaneous Equations Method, etc.
For this supplementary mathematical model, these methods may describe cost tolerance.	Account Analysis, Engineering Method, High-low Approach, Linear Regression Analysis, Scatter Graph Method, Parametric Cost Estimates, Neural Networks and Expert, Function Costing, Group Estimation, Process Costing, Activity-based Costing (ABC), Primarily Exploratory Research, Opinions of Experts, Analogous Cost Estimation, Back-propagation Neural Network Model, Three Neurons Layer, Case-based Techniques and Decision Support Techniques Nearest-neighbor Indexing, Inductive Indexing, Intuitive knowledge-based Indexing, Decision Support Techniques, Parametric and Analytical Techniques, Model Logic Method, Activity-based Cost Estimation, Operation Based Approach, Feature-based Cost Estimation, Top to Down Approach, A Bottom-up Approach, etc.

Source: Own work.

3 AN INTEGRATED FORECASTING MODEL

With regard to the first component of the profit formula, cost estimation models should be accurate because markets are competitive, and methods must interconnect with other methods for calculation rather than relying solely on past patterns for decision making. Furthermore, they are unable to evaluate multiple products at the same time and do not account for the fact that markets can be affected by complex factors. In addition, the models do not use dynamic market, industry, or company variables to estimate costs over time and then maximize them (Salmi, A., David, P., Blanco, E., & summers, J. D, 2016; Niazi, 2006).

Researchers need exact and dynamic demand forecasting for prediction of the number of goods sold (as production volumes) based on parameters that have a direct and indirect effect on demand and the production volume when it comes to demand forecasting for prediction of production volume, which is the second component of the profit formula. Besides that, a single model and methodology is not a comprehensive tool for measurement; rather, all elements, such as the number of goods sold, fixed costs, variable cost per unit, and sales price, must be combined for profit maximization prediction (Hyoduk Shin & Tunca, 2010; Armstrong, 2002; Armstrong; 2006). Pricing is a prominent and controversial topic for the market positioning of products into competitive markets, since it is the final factor and another dynamic concept for making a decision. Pricing a product is difficult because it is dependent on product supply and demand, which complicates the purchase price in a pricing system (Soumya Sen, 2014).

These models have a lot of errors and weaknesses when it comes to forecasting the future, and they've worked out the characteristics of forecasts (Günay, 2018). According to researchers, forecasting models are often incorrect, and accuracy decreases as the forecasting period lengthens. The first is that aggregate forecasts are more accurate, forecast models are not realistic when there is no data, and even the availability of a single number is not practical. For the estimation of the mean value and standard deviation, data must have a sequence of numbers. When it comes to the reasons for the existence of the characteristics, they are often linked to forecasters and other times to dynamic factors that alter business, industry, and company parameters. Human factors can affect the outcome of models by causing errors in decision-making (Shahriari, M., Dessy, Aliandrina., Yan, F, 2005). Even a minor adjustment can lead to a significant improvement in the outcome (Nenova & May, 2016). Looking at these errors, one of the reasons as a parameter that causes the performance of the models to shift is the self-interest of experts, managers, and forecasters due to their preferences, which is briefly discussed in this section (Moore & Loewenstein, 2004). As a result, self-interest in a specific market will lead to these specific errors in decision-making, since a market with a market and a product with a product are not the same, and models do not make decisions solely based on individual preferences. Many decision-makers find decision-making challenging and complicated because they lack the necessary knowledge expertise to make decisions when there is no suitable and usable data and a broad data set (Björklund, 2013). In addition, psychological bias can reduce the quality of decision-making and forecasts (Ramnath, S., Rock, S., & Shane, P, 2008), and the quality is also reduced with a repeatable and extensive decisionmaking process. In addition, combining human judgment with a statistical forecasting model may give a system added value. Because of human factors in decision-making and forecasting, the things in Figure 3 are particularly susceptible to psychological bias and self-interest (Baecke, P., De Baets, S., & Vanderheyden, K, 2017).

A mixture of decision-making and forecasting models is used to increase the accuracy of forecasting models as well as the ability to make informed decisions (Spithourakis, G. P., Petropoulos, F., Nikolopoulos, K., & Assimakopoulos, V, 2015). Furthermore, several researchers have performed a variety of studies in order to promote forecasting models and ultimately make informed decisions. Since a single model can have limitations and errors, Barrow and Kourentzes attempted to demonstrate how combining multiple forecasts can reduce the errors and limitations of a single model while still increasing forecast accuracy (Barrow & Kourentzes, 2016). One of the most critical factors in reducing forecasting errors is a better understanding of the forecasting mechanism, which needs more focus (Stekler, 2015). In order to modify the problem, Lahiri and Sheng used the forecast method in the Bayesian decision-making system (Lahiri & Sheng, 2008). Another problem with the forecasting model is the process for assessing predictions, which has two foundations (see Figure 3) (Stekler, 2015).



Figure 3: Procedures of Evaluation in the Forecasting Models.



Further to that, since forecasting models are linked to events that will occur in the future, reorganizing forecasting models to include ex-ante approaches is another beneficial problem for accuracy. These enhancements aim to move the models closer to real-time forecasting when taking into account complex variables (Fildes & Stekler, 2002). Figure 4 illustrates the two methods to make decisions about people's opinions (qualitative) and formulation – predictive forecasting (quantitative). To put it another way, the objective approach is concerned with Global vs. Point Methods, Probabilistic vs. Point Forecasts, Computational Convexity, and Linearity & Convexity, while the subjective approach is

concerned with Ensemble vs. Single Models, Driven vs. Model-driven, Discriminative vs. Generative, Statistical Guarantees, and Explanatory/Interpretable vs. Predictive vs. Predict (Januschowski. T, Gasthaus. J, Wang. Y et al., 2019; Fildes, Robert and Petropoulos, Fotios, 2015).



A forecasting model may be timely, but the right one must be accurate, as well as meaningful and simple to use for forecasters. In addition, for the estimation of variables and profit maximization, a supplementary mathematical model must be used. All aspects of forecasting must be considered, including market, industry, and company dynamic indicators, quantitative and qualitative methods, subjective and objective approaches, and so on, and both of the approaches described in figure 4 can be used in this model, which is the aim of this study to make a decision. It is derived from one of the operation research methods for developing this supplementary mathematical model, and operation research methods also have powerful tools for enhancing the precision of decision-making in forecasting models that can incorporate these aspects of the model (Fildes, Robert and Petropoulos, Fotios, 2015).

4 OPERATION RESEARCH METHODS

Operation Research (OR) methods are quantitative and numerical decision-making methods that use a mathematical and analytical model to quantify more accurate and precise performance for large and small, private and public organizations. Moreover, the model carefully forecasts outcomes when taking into account complex variables and constraints. The model of operation research can be linked to optimization, game theory, economics, simulation, network analysis, quality and productivity of operations

management, pricing, supply chain management, revenue management, and so on, as shown in Figure 5. There are many methods of operation research that have applications in industries.



Figure 5: Operation Research Techniques.

Source: Operations Research Proceedings 2019, (2020).

Operation research examines existing operations in order to improve performance, particularly in terms of making successful decisions in the data processing process and monitoring decisions for optimization in various industries under unique conditions. In addition, the models can be used in a variety of areas, including agricultural planning, organized military administration, governmental organization, mission scheduling, delivery of products and services, emergency and rescue operations, engineering systems design, commercial and industrial processes, environmental management, financial planning, allocation and distribution in projects, inventory control, resource allocation, facilities planning, manufacturing of products, military operations, production process control, risk analysis, sequencing of tasks and functions, telecommunications, and traffic control and has also application different departments supply-chain system, enterprise resource planning, total quality management, just-in-time production and inventory management, and materials requirements planning (Thies, 2019). One of the applications of the methods in manufacturing companies is the deployment of a proper workforce in the production site in order to achieve an optimized output and proper machine allocation in the production lines. The model may also design a manufacturing system in terms of plant size, warehouse location, and other facilities. Other applications include procurement cost minimization, product mix selection, investment decision-making, and a variety of others (Glock, C. H., Grosse, E. H., Jaber, M. Y., & Smunt, T. L, 2018). In order to formulate problems in a case, planners must consider elements such as the environment, objectives, and decision-maker. Then, as shown in Figure 6, a problem is formulated based on action and reaction, which must be generated when taking into account the real environment, constraints, and objectives. The following step involves deriving the solution and testing the model. Finally, the model should be managed and monitored on a regular basis before an optimal solution is found. Linear programming is one of the most widely used techniques in operations research.



Figure 6: Processes of Creation of a Model.

Source: Tomaskova H, Weber G. (2020).

4.1 Linear Programming (LP)

In this study, linear programming (LP) is used, which is a mathematical method for calculating the value of obtainable variables under a given condition. LP was invented by Leonid Kantorovich in 1937 during World War II as a mathematical tool for predicting and preparing for the optimal outcomes. LP is a mathematical method for determining the best feasible outcome or solution from a set of characteristics or needs represented as linear connections. LP is used in the manufacturing industry to analyze supply chain activities. Their goal is to maximize efficiency while keeping operating costs to a minimal. The factory can restructure their storage architecture, modify their personnel, and decrease bottlenecks based on the linear programming model's recommendations.

In manufacturing organizations, LP is one of the most basic methods for optimizing and solving a complex problem. The model aims to find the best options for industrial

companies by taking into consideration various constraints. In organized retail, linear programming is also utilized to optimize shelf space. Because the quantity of products on the market has grown by leaps and bounds, it's critical to know what the customer wants. The products in the store are deliberately placed to accommodate the purchasing habits of the customers. The goal is to make it simple for customers to find and purchase the proper products. This is limited by factors such as shelf space, product variety, and so on. Delivery Routes can also benefit from optimization. This is a variation on the well-known traveling salesperson issue. For several salesman traveling to multiple places, the service business employs optimization to identify the optimal path. The delivery routes are determined using clustering and a greedy algorithm, with the goal of reducing operation costs and time. Machine Learning makes use of optimizations as well. Supervised Learning is based on the linear programming fundamentals. From labeled input data, a system is trained to fit a mathematical model of a function that can predict values from unknown test data.

Linear programming has the following basic components:

- Decision variables
- Objective function
- Constraints
- Data

Decision variables, objective function, constraints, and data are all part of the LP. The outcome will be determined by the decision variables. They are the last solution. Any problem must first be solved by identifying the decision variables. The decision variables in the preceding example are the total number of units for A and B, which are denoted by X and Y, respectively. Objective function represents how each decision variable influences the cost, or, more simply, the value that must be optimized. Constraints refer to the restrictions or limitations placed on the decision variables. They frequently set a limit on the decision variables' value. The availability of resources is limited in the preceding situation. Furthermore, the decision variables in all linear programs should always be non-negative. This means that decision variables should have values that are larger than or equal to 0. The steps involved in formulating a Linear Programming issue:

- Identify the decision variables
- Write the objective function
- Mention the constraints
- Explicitly state the non-negativity restriction

Advantages of Linear Programming includes: Decision-makers who use this strategy are more objective in their decisions. Another benefit is resource maximum. This strategy aids in the maximization of natural resources that are restricted. This strategy can be used by managers to allocate restricted resources. In terms of the third, the technique has the ability to tackle complicated problems that managers face in everyday life. In terms of the model's use in this study, this model has three independent variables that are also decision variables: the number of goods sold, the cost, and the sales price. Decision variables influence performance, and the model makes decisions based on the variables. Furthermore, these decision variables must first be described in order for LP to find a solution. Profit is a dependent variable that is attempted to be maximized using linear programming as an objective function in the model, which is one of the more applicable tools of operation analysis. Another aspect of this model is the constraints, which specify the parameters that must be met in order to calculate exact performance (Kersting, K., Mladenov, M., & Tokmakov, P, 2017). Other advantages of the model are multiple constraints, simplicity, and multipurpose (Solaja et al., 2019).

4.2 Making a Mathematical Model by Linear Programming

By combining a decision-making model and Cost-Volume-Profit (CVP) analysis with consideration of dynamic variables, constraints, and other factors previously listed for improving the quality and accuracy of a forecasting model, this research develops a model to reduce many failures of past forecasting models.

The first phase of the model is applicable to the combination of linear programming as an operation research model with Cost-Volume-Profit (CVP) analysis, as defined in this chapter. Figure 7 provides a graphical representation of the method of creating this model. For making a decision, the constraints of this model can use all approaches, techniques, and methods that have been listed and not mentioned in this report.

Constraints determine the dimension of making a decision, while dynamic factors that affect variables multiply as a growth rate to variables. This model aims to maximize profit by estimating four variables as part of a long-term output, including the number of goods produced, fixed costs, variable cost per unit, and sales price with a value greater than zero. Furthermore, output volume is equal to the demand and the number of goods sold. Eventually, growth rates between variables are not zero, and new variables are the last variables in the previous period plus additional amounts applied to the next period. This section defines the mathematical model's variables, such as the sales price of each unit, the level of output in a given time period, variable cost per unit, average fixed costs, and fixed costs that can be adjusted over time in the short or long term and have an impact on the forecasting model's outcome.

P = Sales price of each unit

Q = Level of output in a given time period (the number of goods sold in a given time period)

AVC = Variable cost per unit AFC = Fixed costs per unit FC = Fixed costs

Many constant parameters are included in this mathematical model, and these parameters affect the variables of the mathematical model in the next time period. These constant parameters cannot be modified by adjusting the model's variables over a given time period, and they are constant in this model and markets because indicators determine these parameters, and a business cannot alter the market's indicators but can change its own internal variables.

This section includes a list of constants parameters, such as

a = Market indicators

R_a: Rate of growth in output over the next time period

 R_{β} : Growth rate of each unit's sales price over the next time period

Re: Variable cost per unit growth rate in the next time period

R_u: Rate of increase in average fixed costs over the next time period

 Q_n = Next level of output in a given time period (number of goods sold)

 Q_o = Previous level of output in a given time period (number of goods sold)

 ΔQ = The growth rate of level of output (Increased or Decreased)

n: The number of growth rates that cause variables to increase or decrease in the next time period.



Source: Own work.

5 CREATING AN INTEGRATED FORECASTING MODEL BY COMBINATION OF LINEAR PROGRAMMING AND COST-VOLUME-PROFIT (CVP) ANALYSIS

This mathematical model for decision-making requires the incorporation of linear programming (LP) and Cost-Volume-Profit (CVP) Analysis. The CVP specifies the parameters of the decision-making model, while the LP organizes the mathematical model. The model is developed by combining these two models to define the variables
that allow profit to be maximized in a business while taking into account market constraints and indicators.

5.1 Cost-Volume-Profit (CVP) Analysis

With a combination of total revenue and expense, the model determines profitability at various levels of output.

The Cost-Volume-Profit (CVP) analysis is shown in equation 1.

$$Profit = Total Revenue - Total Cost$$
(1)

$$Profit = QP - QAVC - FC$$
(2)

Total revenue is calculated by multiplying the sales price of each unit by the level of output in a given time period (number of goods sold). Total cost, on the other hand, includes fixed costs that do not change with output level and variable cost per unit, which is a variable that varies with output level. In addition, variable cost per unit multiplied by the amount of output for a given time period yields variable cost, which is then added to fixed costs to yield total cost. Finally, profit is determined by deducting total costs from total revenue (equation 2). Since growth rates have an impact on these parameters, Q is a variable that businesses must forecast. These growth rates are determined by market, industry, and company complex variables that must be derived from indicators such as Figure 8. Equation 3 indicates that the next level of output in a given time period is determined from the previous level of output in a given time period plus ΔQ , which fluctuates due to growth rates in the next given time period due to the changing of the dynamic factors. As a regression form, Q_0 is an intercept, and ΔQ are factors that affect the variable.

$$Q_n = Q_o + \Delta Q \tag{3}$$

Figure 8: The Number of Goods Sold Variable (Level of Output in a Given Time Period) is Influenced by these Dynamic Factors (ΔQ).



As growth rates that have an effect on the level of output in a given time period (number of goods sold) begin to fluctuate, they have a direct impact on this variable (level of output in a given time period) that must be taken into account in forecasting. Equation 4 shows how the level of output in a given time period changes due to a variety of dynamic factors that affect the growth rate of the first to the last factor (n). According to just in time theory, the amount of goods sold equals the level of production in a given time period.

$$\Delta Q = Q_0 R_{a1} + Q_0 R_{a2} + \dots + Q_0 R_{an}$$
(4)

In the Cost-Volume-Profit (CVP) analysis, equations (3) and (4) are used instead of ΔQ . Equation 5 is derived from a study of different growth rates that result in a change in output over time.

$$Profit = PQ- QAVC - FC$$

$$Profit = P(Q_o + \Delta Q) - AVC(Q_o + \Delta Q) - FC$$

$$Profit = P(Q_o + (Q_oR_{a1} + Q_oR_{a2} + ... + Q_oR_{an})) - AVC(Q_o + (Q_oR_{a1} + Q_oR_{a2} + ... + Q_oR_{an})) - AVC(Q_o + (Q_oR_{a1} + Q_oR_{a2} + ... + Q_oR_{an})) - FC$$
(5)

Dynamic factors' growth rates influence and adjust variable cost per unit, and Figure 9 depicts a breakdown of the dynamic factors of production cost based on three components: sector, business, and company. R_e is the growth rate of variable cost per unit in the next given time period multiplied by factors ranging from 1 to n.

Figure 9: The Costs are Influenced by these Dynamic Factors (ΔAVC).



Source: Own work.

In equations 6 and 7, the previous variable cost per unit and the next variable cost per unit are determined from the first to the last factor (n), which is affected by the dynamic factors' growth rates.

$$AVC_{n} = AVC_{o} + \Delta AVC$$
(6)

$$\Delta AVC = AVC_{o}R_{e1} + AVC_{o}R_{e2} + \dots + AVC_{o}R_{en}$$
(7)

The growth rates that affect the variable cost per unit are factored into Equation 8.

$$\begin{aligned} \text{Profit} &= P\left(Q_{o} + (Q_{o}R_{a1} + Q_{o}R_{a2} + \ldots + Q_{o}R_{an})\right) - (AVC_{o} + AVC_{o}R_{e1} + AVC_{o}R_{e2} + \ldots + AVC_{o}R_{en}\right) \left(Q_{o} + (Q_{o}R_{a1} + Q_{o}R_{a2} + \ldots + Q_{o}R_{an})\right) - FC \end{aligned}$$

$$\end{aligned}$$

The model is improved by including price and dynamic price variables in equations 8 and 9, followed by equations 9 and 10. The new price is calculated using the previous price plus price growth rates. R_{β} denotes the growth rates of each unit's purchase price over the next time period, which are influenced by dynamic factors.

$$P_{n} = P_{o} + \Delta P \tag{9}$$

$$\Delta P = P_{o}R_{\beta 1} + P_{o}R_{\beta 2} + \dots + P_{o}R_{\beta n}$$
(10)

Equation 11 is obtained by combining equations 8 and 10.

$$Profit = (P_{o} + P_{o}R_{\beta 1} + P_{o}R_{\beta 2} + ... + P_{o}R_{\beta n}) (Q_{o} + (Q_{o}R_{a1} + Q_{o}R_{a2} + ... + Q_{o}R_{an})) - (AVC_{o} + AVC_{o}R_{e1} + AVC_{o}R_{e2} + ... + AVC_{o}R_{en}) (Q_{o} + (Q_{o}R_{a1} + Q_{o}R_{a2} + ... + Q_{o}R_{an})) - FC$$

(11)

Since forecasting models are developed based on short and long-term planning, the model is created as long-term planning for a production system, since fixed costs are constant in the short term but variable in the long term. Since the fixed cost is constant, equation 11 is considered for the short term, while equation 12 is for the long term and is written by entering the correlation between growth rates and the fixed cost per unit. Ru is the correlation vector, and its components relate to the long-term effects of growth rates on the fixed cost per unit.

$$Profit = [P_{o}(1 + \sum_{n=1}^{n} R_{\beta n})(Q_{o}(1 \pm \sum_{n=1}^{n} R_{an}))] - [AVC_{o}(1 + \sum_{n=1}^{n} R_{en})(Q_{o} + \sum_{n=1}^{n} R_{an})] - [AFC_{o}(1 + \sum_{n=1}^{n} R_{un})(Q_{o} + \sum_{n=1}^{n} R_{an})] - [AFC_{o}(1 + \sum_{n=1}^{n} R_{un})(Q_{o} + \sum_{n=1}^{n} R_{an})]$$
(12)

In terms of linear programming (LP), it is a mathematical model for maximizing or minimizing objectives when taking constraints into account. To make a decision, the models should be paired with linear programming. There are several variables in the equation, and the correlation coefficients are intertwined. Furthermore, the model has a goal, which is to maximize profit by converting all numbers into constraints tolerances. In this profit maximization model, Z is an objective that is shown in equation 13.

Profit: Max Z=[P_o(1+
$$\sum_{1}^{n}$$
 R_{βn})(Q_o(1± \sum_{1}^{n} R_{an}))]-[AVC_o(1+ \sum_{1}^{n} R_{en})(Q_o+ \sum_{1}^{n} R_{an})]-
[AFC_o (1+ \sum_{1}^{n} R_{un})(Q_o+ \sum_{1}^{n} R_{an})] (13)

5.2 The Final Model

This section addresses the issue of incorporating constraints into mathematical modeling because constraints determine the data tolerance for making a decision; in other words, variables make decisions within the given tolerances. The following model is a final and systematic equation that uses qualitative and quantitative methods to understand both growth rates, constraints, and the association between variables, as well as profit maximization.

Profit: Max Z = [P_o(1+
$$\sum_{1}^{n} R_{\beta n})(Q_{o}(1 \pm \sum_{1}^{n} R_{an}))]-[AVC_{o}(1 + \sum_{1}^{n} R_{en})(Q_{o} + \sum_{1}^{n} R_{an})]-[AFC_{o}(1 + \sum_{1}^{n} R_{un})(Q_{o} + \sum_{1}^{n} R_{an})]$$

S.t:



Figure 10 shows how the model makes a decision in the given domain based on constraints and variable correlation. For making a decision, constraints restrict the number of goods sold, fixed costs, variable cost per unit, and sales price.



Figure 10: Area of Making a Decision.

This model can be used in a variety of industries to determine the best point for profit maximization by businesses. To evaluate the model, it is applied to the gasoline market in the United States. With the exception of the factors discussed in this case study as an assumption, all factors in that market remain constant for the next specified period of time. The price of fuel in this market is one of the variables in this model. The industrial production, distribution, refining, and marketing of petroleum products are the key pillars of the gasoline industry in the United States for classification and study. Since the United States, China, Japan, and India are the world's top petroleum consumers (Sönnichsen, 2020), the gasoline industry is a significant market in this region. Retail gasoline prices are influenced by a number of factors, the most important of which are crude oil prices and the level of gasoline supply in relation to demand. When looking at the data, the retail price of gasoline has four major components, which are specified in this section (US Energy Information Administration – EIA, 2020).

- The cost of crude oil
- Refining costs and profits
- Distribution and marketing costs and profits
- Taxes

The cost of crude oil is one of the most significant components of the retail price of gasoline, and it fluctuates continuously over time across various regions of the United States due to a variety of factors that influence and alter the retail price.

Source: Own work.

This segment discusses seven main factors that have a significant effect on the cost of crude oil and then the retail price of gasoline.

- 1. Supply by Non-OPEC
- 4 Supply by OPEC
- 5 Balance between demand and supply
- 6 Spot Prices
- 7 Financial Markets
- 8 Demand by Non-OECD
- 9 Demand by OECD

These seven main factors have a number of components that cause them to fluctuate cost of crude oil, as shown in Table 4 (US Energy Information Administration – EIA, 2020).

	Production & WII crude prices
	Changes in production capacity & GDP, price
Supply by Non-OPEC	of WTI crude
	Projected supply appual everage
	Flojected suppry, annual average
	OPEC and Non-opec supply disruption
Supply by OPEC	Changes in Saudi production & WTI crude
	prices
	Spare production capacity & WTI crude
	spare production capacity & will clude
	prices
Balance between Demand and Supply	OECD inventories & WTI futures spread
	YYY 11 1 11 1
Spot Prices	World crude oil prices
	U.S. retail gasoline price, refiner acquisition
	cost of crude oil
	Crude price reaction to events
	crude price reaction to events

Table 4: The Factors which Influence the Cost of Crude Oil.

Source: U.S. Energy Information Administration - EIA - Independent Statistics and Analysis, 2020.

The refining costs and profits are another factor that influences the retail price of gasoline. The characteristics of gasoline vary depending on the season and area, as well as the type of refining and crude oil used, technology, other ingredients such as fuel ethanol, and formulation. In 2020, the sum of overall state and federal taxes is 29.86 cents per gallon and 18.3 cents per gallon, respectively, when looking at the effect of taxes on the price of fuel. Distribution, marketing, retail dealer prices, a local condition such as fueling position and the owner's marketing plan, state and local taxes, wages and salaries, benefits, vehicles, lease or rent payments, and insurance are all factors that influence the price of gasoline increases proportionally. Based on appendix 2 components of annual gasoline price changes include Brent crude oil price, wholesale margin over crude, and retail margin over wholesale. Taking all into account, annual gasoline price changes with complex factors that affect the price of gasoline are expected to be about 0,09 from 2020 to 2021, according to the forecast in appendix 2.

$$0.09 = \Delta P = P_0 R_{\beta 1} + P_0 R_{\beta 2} + \dots + P_0 R_{\beta n}$$
(15)

$$P_{n} = P_{o} + (0,09)P_{o}$$
(16)

Figure 11 shows the shift in average retail price between 2010 and 2019 as a result of adjusting these parameters.



Figure 11: The Price of Per Gallon of Retail Gasoline

Source: U.S. Energy Information Administration, (2020).

Because of seasonal declines and the growth rate of COVID-19 events, consumption dropped to 8,1 million b/d in the fourth quarter of 2020, but EIA forecasts consumption to rise to an average of 8,9 million b/d in the second half of 2021. According to the following estimate, gasoline consumption will rise at a rate of about 0,09 b/d in the next given time period (U.S. Energy Information Administration – EIA, 2021). The growth rate of gasoline consumption is

$$\frac{(8,9-8,1)}{8,1} = 0,09\tag{17}$$

According to the EIA, Brent crude oil spot prices will rise to an average of \$53/b per barrel in 2021, up from an average of \$42/b per barrel in 2020, and crude oil will account for 46% of the price of retail gasoline in this study's Figure 12 and appendix 1. Finally, based on the calculations below, the variable cost will increase by 0,11 in the next given time period (U.S. Energy Information Administration – EIA, January 2021).

$$\frac{(53-42)}{42} = 0,26 \tag{18}$$

$$(0,26)(0,46) = 0,11 \tag{19}$$

Assume that the growth rate of average fixed costs per gallon of gasoline, which only includes fixed costs, is 0.26 for the next specified time period (Frequently Asked Questions (faqs)-US Energy Information Administration – EIA, 13 February 2021; State-Motor-Fuel-Notes-Summary, 2021).

$$\frac{(37,85-29,86)}{29,86} = 0,26\tag{20}$$



Figure 12: Variable and Fixed Costs of Gasoline.

Source: U.S. Energy Information Administration, (2021).

Finally, coefficients are added to equation 21 to affect the variables in both positive and negative ways.

In terms of the model's constraints, the model makes a decision based on the company's, market's, and industry's established limitations and constraints. Simply put, constraints restrict the model's tolerance for variables when making a decision. The retail gasoline price, in particular, could fluctuate between 1.07 and 4 dollars per gallon, with an estimate of 2.4 dollars per gallon in 2021 based on the tables in appendix 3. Furthermore, according to Appendix 4, daily gasoline intake ranges between 20000 and 60000 gallons.

Following the regression analysis in Excel, a table in appendix 5 displays data on retail fuel sales and prices over the last three decades, and the outcome of the analysis in relation to appendix 6 is shown in equation 22.

$$Q = (69859,97753) - (12932,9)P$$
(22)

In terms of other model correlations, according to figure 12, 59 percent of gasoline is related to the price of crude oil and refining, all of which are variable costs. These two costs are considered in the category of average variable costs in the measurement and the model, based on an assumption in this case and only for checking the model, and then 46 percent of gasoline also concerns taxation, promotion, and distribution. In addition, equations 23 and 24 show a relationship between average variable costs and retail prices, as well as average fixed costs.

$$AVC = 0,78$$
 sales price (23)

$$AFC = 0,22$$
 sales price (24)

Equation 25 is the model for research when all factors are considered.

Profit: Max Z =
$$[(1, 1881)P_{o}Q_{o}]$$
- $[(1,2)AVC_{o}Q_{o}]$ - $[(1.3)AFC_{o}Q_{o}]$
S.t
2 dollars per gallon \leq sales price \leq 4 dollars per gallon
20000 gallons per day \leq *level of output* \leq 60000 gallons per day
AVC= 0,78 Price
AFC = 0,22 Price
Level of output = Q = (69859,97753) - (12932,9) Price (25)

MATLAB is one of the most useful programs for analyzing these specific samples. To put it simply, it is a mathematical computing software used by engineers and scientists to evaluate complex mathematical models. For technical computing, MATLAB is a highperformance language. It combines computing, visualization, and programming in a userfriendly environment in which problems and answers are expressed in mathematical notation. In this case, MATLAB is used to write linear programming to obtain the same result. The model's codes are depicted in a figure in Appendix 7, and they are written with constraints and complex factors in mind. The result is determined by MATLAB after writing the model's codes, and it is shown in Figure 13. For profit maximization, the effects of this model include optimal levels of sales price, number of goods sold, average variable cost, and average fixed cost.

Figure 13: The Result of this Model (Case Study).

Local minimum found that satisfies the constraints. Optimization completed because the objective function is non-decreasing in feasible directions, to within the default value of the optimality tolerance, and constraints are satisfied to within the default value of the constraint tolerance. ans = [3.855, 20000.0, 3.007, 0.8482] ans = -3209.0

Source: Own work.

Based on the results of this MATLAB sample, the sales price per gallon of fuel, the level of output in the next given time period, the average variable cost, and the average fixed cost must be 3.855, 20000, 3.007, and 0.84 dollars in turns in the next period until the company reaches profit maximization with a total of 3209 dollars per day. When a linear programming result is minimized, it can be reversed, and the maximization can be used instead. To put it another way, these profit and variable quantities are the optimal amounts at which the gasoline company should expect to optimize profit when taking into account demand, business, and company constraints, as well as dynamic factors and their effects on variables. The output of the mathematical model is shown in Table 5 for consideration.

Table 5: The Output of the Mathematical Model.

Optimum Retail	Optimum level of	Optimum Average	Optimum Average
Price	Output	Variable Cost	Fixed Cost
3.855	20000	3.007	0.84

Source: Own work.

5.3 Analysis of the Model

Although profit maximization is a well-known goal of a business, several thinkers have questioned its validity. They have objected to the profit maximization goal for the following reasons. Profit maximizing has been criticized for a number of flaws, some of which are listed here. The term "profit" is a bit of a misnomer. It's because people with various mindsets have different perspectives on profit. Profits can be defined as net profit, gross profit, profit before taxes, profit per share, or profit rate, for example. In terms of profitability, there is no clearly defined profit maximization rule. Besides, The larger the profit, the better the proposal," says the profit maximization formula. In essence, it is focusing on the raw gains without taking into account the timing of those profits. "A dollar today is not equal to a dollar a year later," states another major finance concept. As a result, the temporal value of money is entirely disregarded.

Another disadvantage of profit maximization as a goal is that it ignores intangible rewards like quality, image, technological breakthroughs, and so on. The importance of intangible assets in generating value for a company should not be overlooked and the firm's profit maximization goal is more important in the near run. This goal will not allow a company to survive in the long run. If profit maximization is the fundamental goal of all businesses, they may engage in unethical practices in order to maximize profits.

According to the Profit Maximization Rule, if a company wants to maximize profits, it should choose an output level where Marginal Cost (MC) equals Marginal Revenue (MR) and the Marginal Cost curve is rising. To put it another way, it needs to produce at a level where MC equals MR. However, in the actual world, determining your Marginal Revenue and Marginal Cost of the most recent things sold is difficult. For example, knowing the price elasticity of demand for their goods – which influences the MR – is challenging for businesses. The use of the profit maximization rule is also influenced by how other businesses react. Demand may be inelastic if you raise your pricing and other businesses follow suit. However, demand will be elastic if you are the only company to raise the price. Furthermore, the impact of price changes on demand is difficult to separate. Apart from price, a variety of other factors can influence demand. On the other hand, this intelligent model can evaluate profit maximization while taking into account all internal and external elements when making decisions, improving decision accuracy while reducing the limitations and drawbacks of the profit maximization concept in businesses.

When a business considers profit maximization concept, the maximized sales revenue combined with the highest level of production and/or price, as well as cost minimization, results in a profit maximization model based on conventional models. The situation of markets and businesses, on the other hand, is extremely complex, and the presented model attempts to fill in the gaps by taking into account all possible scenarios and connecting

them with variables. You will see the flaws in the previous theories and then see how the mandatory mathematical model will change the profit-maximization principle.

Profit: Max Z =
$$[(1, 1881)P_{o}Q_{o}]$$
- $[(1,2)AVC_{o}Q_{o}]$ - $[(1.3)AFC_{o}Q_{o}]$
S.t
2 dollars per gallon \leq sales price \leq 4 dollars per gallon
20000 gallons per day \leq *level of output* \leq 60000 gallons per day
AVC= 0,78 Price
AFC = 0,22 Price
Level of output = Q = (69859,97753) - (12932,9) Price (26)

In terms of production, a business should consider the maximized amount of output if it wants to optimize its sales revenue. If the business is going to increase the sales revenue based on the below formula, the price is calculated 0.76 dollars, but 0.76 is outside of the deemed tolerance based on the model's situation.

Level of output = Q =
$$(69859,97753) - (12932,9)$$
 Price
 $60000 = 69859.97 - (12932.9)$ Price
Price = 0.76
Tolerance of price = 2 dollars per gallon \leq sales price \leq 4 dollars per gallon

(27)

Given the current market environment, the retail fuel price ranges between 2 and 4, making the price range considered for optimizing sales revenue difficult to account for since a business cannot account for 0.76 as a price based on the defined tolerance. In terms of price, if the maximized price of 4 dollars per gallon is used for profitmaximization calculations, the amount of production calculated below is about 18000 gallons per day, which is impossible because it is less than the given tolerance of 20000.

Level of output =Q =
$$(69859,97753) - (12932,9)$$
 Price
Q= $(69859,97753) - (12932,9)$ (4)
Level of output = 18000 gallons per day
Tolerance of the level of output = 20000 gallons per day
level of output \leq 60000 gallons per day. (28)

There are several drawbacks for finding the equilibrium point if the company only considers a normal formula for calculating profit based on standard models, as shown in Figure 14. Restrictions and connections between variables with variables restrict the company's ability to find the equilibrium point, but the available models' decision-making area is often limited by limitations, but the current model intelligently considers these mistakes and makes decisions while taking these obstacles and circumstances into account.





Source: Own work.

With respect to costs minimization and based on the calculations below, assuming cost minimization, variable and fixed costs, and the price of gasoline should tend to zero.

$$AVC = 0,78 Price$$
(29)

$$AFC = 0,22 Price \tag{30}$$

As a consequence, the reduced costs cannot be considered without taking other variables, equations, and constraints into account, which the presented model does.

The model is intelligent and makes decisions based on orders and equations that a company can specify based on the company's, business, and industry's situation, and the orders can be an equation or a parameter tolerance. Variables can be combined with limitations and the growth rate of the variables in the next time period to make a decision. Furthermore, grow-rates can be linked to variables since these parameters cause the variables to shift in the next time period. This decision has no self-interest because an intelligent model makes a decision in the next time period, and it therefore resists self-interest in the internal organization.

When the variables do not have a fixed number and there are many tolerances for them, the model will calculate an amount for the variables, which is a path map for many businesses' decision-making.

The model solves the problem of traditional profit maximization being restricted models like the

1. Finding an equilibrium point, marginal cost, and revenue is a difficult issue for a business, and managers' decision-making is hampered by the principles of predicted points.

2. When managers have another target in mind for making decisions, the model will assist them in combining those goals with profit maximization to arrive at the best outcome.

5.4 Analysis of Accuracy of the Model

The difference between observed and forecasted values should be used to determine predictive accuracy. The projected values, on the other hand, can refer to a variety of factors. As a result, the prediction accuracy that results might apply to a variety of concepts. In this section, the proposed model will be compared to two other available models, including the Neoclassical Model (Profit Maximizing Model) and Baumol's Single-Period Model (Sales-Maximising Model). The model demonstrates that the available model cannot calculate the maximum point in this situation, but the presented model can do so based on the defined parameters and when linear programming has an output based on defined equations and correlations, and no based on self-interests.

5.4.1 Comparison of this Model with Neoclassical Model (Profit Maximizing Model)

If a corporation wishes to maximize profit, it should select an output level where Marginal Cost (MC) equals Marginal Revenue (MR) and the Marginal Cost curve is rising, according to the Profit Maximization Rule. To put it another way, it needs to generate at a level where MC equals MR. Because total revenue and total cost are both represented as functions of quantity, the derivative of the total profit equation with respect to quantity can be used to determine what quantity of output will maximize profits.

The profit maximization equation is shaped with the derivative of the profit equation respect to quantity if the level of output equation (Q = (69859,97753) - (12932,9)). P_o), AFC = 0,22 Price and AVC= 0,78 Price are utilized in the main equation, and then the equation 31 is created.

$$Q = (69859,97753) - (12932,9).P \longrightarrow P_o = -(0.000077).Q + 5.4017$$

Profit maximization = [(1, 1881)P_o]-[(1,2) 0,78 P_o] - [(1.3) 0,22 P_o] (31)

The result of the Neoclassical Model, where MC and MR are equal, is Q = 70892.8, which the market and industry are not capable of producing in this amount, so the company cannot reach and calculates to this point based on constraints, but the presented model makes a more accurate decision based on different concepts.

5.4.2 Baumol's Single-Period (Sales-Maximising Model)

The next important business theory is sales maximization. If a company wishes to increase sales, it must choose the highest production amount. Based on the most recent data, 60000 gallons per day must be chosen to obtain the highest level of output. If this amount of output is taken into account, the price must be 0.76 based on this equation (Q = (69859,97753) - (12932,9). P_o), which is outside of the market and industry's price tolerance range of 2 to 4 euros, preventing the company from attaining its aim. However, the presented model, which took into account all criteria, resolved the issues that businesses will confront if they fail to meet their objectives.

6 EXTENSION OF THIS MODEL

It can be used in business decisions, game theory, benefit maximization with respect to outputs and inputs, Baumol's single-period sales-maximization model, price discrimination, the two-part tariff in terms of pricing, bundling, tying, buy or make on the market, maximum willingness to pay and consumer surplus, competitive advantage and value creation, strategic positioning, VRIO analysis, production function, cost function, and other supply chain and production system issues, for example. Examining a variety of approaches in which this mathematical model can be applied.

6.1 Application of the Model in Dynamic-pricing

Dynamic pricing refers to a pricing strategy that changes commodity prices on a regular basis based on demand and supply, as well as market conditions. The game theory model, which was defined in the paragraph on price forecasting, is a model that can be used in dynamic pricing.



6.2 Application of the Model in Price Discrimination

Price discrimination occurs when a business charges different prices for the same good or service to different consumers. The price that the company sets is the highest price that a consumer can pay for it.



Profit: Max Z =
$$(P_{o1} + \sum_{1}^{n} W_{\beta n}, R_{\beta n})$$
. $(Q_{o1} + \sum_{1}^{n} W_{an}, R_{an}) + (P_{o2} + \sum_{1}^{n} W_{\beta n}, R_{\beta n})$.
 $(Q_{o2} + \sum_{1}^{n} W_{an}, R_{an}) + (P_{o3} + \sum_{1}^{n} W_{\beta n}, R_{\beta n})$. $(Q_{o3} + \sum_{1}^{n} W_{an})$
Correlation between
variables with
consideration of
qualitative and
quantitative approaches

(34)

6.3 Application of this Model in Pricing on a Duopoly Market

Where firms 1 and 2 sell the same commodity, firm 1 must choose the best pricing strategy in contrast to firm 2's pricing strategies. The model determines profit maximization in firm 1 when taking into account the commodity price in firm 2.

If firm 2 chooses the low price (P_02), the model should take P_01 into account in this tolerance $5 \le P_01 \le 7$ and make a decision based on these values.

(35)

6.4 Application of this Model in Peak-load Pricing

Peak-load pricing takes into account when a company charges higher rates during peak periods and when demand rises dramatically during that time.

$$\begin{split} P_{o^{1}} &= \text{Regular price} \\ P_{o^{2}} &= \text{Prices during peak periods} \\ \text{Profit: Max } Z &= [[(P_{o^{1}} + \sum_{1}^{n} W_{\beta n}. R_{\beta n}). (Q_{o^{1}} + \sum_{1}^{n} W_{a n}. R_{a n})] - [AVC_{o^{1}} \\ + \sum_{1}^{n} W_{e n}. R_{e n}]. [Q_{o^{1}} + \sum_{1}^{n} W_{a n}. R_{a n}] - [(AFC_{o^{1}} + \sum_{1}^{n} W_{u n} R_{u n}). (Q_{o^{1}} + \\ \sum_{1}^{n} W_{a n}. R_{a n})]] + [[(P_{o^{2}} + \sum_{1}^{n} W_{\beta n}. R_{\beta n}). (Q_{o^{2}} + \sum_{1}^{n} W_{a n}. R_{a n})] - [AVC_{o^{2}} \\ + \sum_{1}^{n} W_{e n}. R_{e n}]. [Q_{o^{2}} + \sum_{1}^{n} W_{a n}. R_{a n}] - [(AFC_{o^{2}} + \sum_{1}^{n} W_{u n} R_{u n}). (Q_{o^{2}} + \\ \sum_{1}^{n} W_{a n}. R_{a n})]] \\ \text{S.t} \\ P_{1} \leq P_{o^{1}} \leq P_{2} \\ P_{o^{2}} = \text{Maximized } P = P_{2} \end{split}$$
(36)

CONCLUSION

Various external forces have an impact on an organization's decision-making process. Some are uncontrollable by the company since they are external. Others are generally under control because they are within the firm. In this volatile globalized economy, these factors fluctuate with time, hence forecasting and decision-making models should be enhanced as much as possible. Although profit maximization is a clear managerial goal, it does not always indicate that short-term profit increases will result in long-term sustainable profits. A decline in product quality that lowers production costs, for example, will result in a quick boost in profit, but it will also tarnish a company's reputation and give the competition an advantage. Lowering a company's staff training or R&D expenditure will reduce operating costs while simultaneously increasing short-term profitability. The competition, on the other hand, may not follow suit and instead offer a far superior product or service. The corporation that decides to cut its budget to pursue a short-term profit gain could lose a considerable amount of market share in the long run. Profit maximization concept is a significant aim for businesses in terms of planning, but they face significant challenges in determining this amount due to the difficulty of determining the concepts of marginal revenue (MR) and cost (MC). As a result, when these points (MR, MC) are ambiguous or difficult to locate, calculating the equilibrium point is a difficult task. If managers can decide these points, however, there are other obstacles to overcome before making a decision. For example, market, business, and company constraints and circumstances restrict the decision-making region, and these points (MR, MC, and equilibrium point) are not taken into consideration when determining the optimum points and then profit-maximizing points. Besides that, managers and decision-makers have various priorities, such as maximization of sales revenue and cost minimization, which makes it difficult for managers to consider all theories and options when making decisions. When there isn't a consistent number for the

variables, the available models are prone to making several errors when attempting to produce a suitable result. The aim of this study was to develop a supplementary mathematical model that would determine the optimal price, variable costs, fixed costs, and production volume for profit maximization while taking into account various constraints, correlations between variables, and growth rates, and also with external dynamic factors and equations that take into consideration growth rates of variables that are related to dynamic factors, as well as constraints and correlations between variables, in order to estimate the optimal points of sales price, number of goods sold, average variable cost, and fixed cost for profit maximization. All external and internal factors can be considered as equitation in this mathematical model's portion of constraints, which is dependent on variables such as risks, competitors, product quality, and R7D in the real world and market. In reality, the model is a supplementary mathematical model that employs other tools, techniques, and approaches to improve forecasting model accuracy and address model limitations. In other words, by combining Linear Programming with Cost-Volume-Profit (CVP) methodologies, this model explains how to improve decisionmaking and profitability. Furthermore, organizations must be able to relate all elements to profit maximization model variables in order to make a decision. The model was tested using MATLAB software after it was created and based on a case study. The gasoline industry in the United States of America is examined for measurements, and an attempt is made to demonstrate the model's use. The optimum selling price, the optimum level of output, the optimum average variable cost, the optimum average fixed cost, and profit are 3.855 dollars, 20000 gallons a day, 3.007 dollars, 0.84 dollars, and 3209 dollars in turns, according to the MATLAB output. After obtaining a result using the presented model, the model's capability was briefly addressed in the section of model analysis in relation to available theory for determining the optimum point. The models can then be generalized to other sections, such as pricing systems, cost systems, profit maximization, market share maximization, and other business theories and methods that were briefly discussed in the model extension section.

REFERENCE LIST

- Abdelmoneim Mohamed, A. & Jones, T. (2014), "Relationship between strategic management accounting techniques and profitability - a proposed model", *Measuring Business Excellence*, Vol. 18 No. 3, pp. 1-22. https://doi-org.nukweb.nuk.unilj.si/10.1108/MBE-04-2013-0023.
- 2. Armstrong, J. S. (2006). Findings from evidence-based forecasting: Methods for reducing forecast error. *International Journal of Forecasting*, 22(3), 583-598.
- 3. Adeyemo, J. & F. Otiero. F, (2009), "Optimizing Planting Areas using Differential Evolution and Linear Programming" *International Journal of Physical Sciences*, vol.4 pp.212-220.

- 4. Armstrong, J. S. (2002). *Principles of Forecasting: A Handbook for Researchers and Practitioners* (J. S. Armstrong Ed.): Springer, pp.1-57.
- 5. Armstrong, J. S. (2006). Findings from evidence-based forecasting: Methods for reducing forecast error. *International Journal of Forecasting*, 22(3), 583-598.
- Aultman-Hall, L., LaMondia, J. J., Ullman, H., & Suender, M. (2018). Surveying social network geography to model long-distance travel. *Transportation Research Procedia*, 32, 542-552. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.trpro.2018.10.027.
- Abdar, M., & Yen, N. Y. (2018). Analysis of user preference and expectation on shared economy platform: An examination of correlation between points of interest on Airbnb. *Computers in Human Behavior*. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chb.2018.09.039.
- Aradhye, A. S., & Kallurkar, S. P. (2014). A Case Study of Just-In-Time System in Service Industry. Procedia Engineering, 97, 2232-2237. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.proeng.2014.12.467.
- 9. Al-Mousa, A., & Faza, A. (2019). A fuzzy-based customer response prediction model for a day-ahead dynamic pricing system. *Sustainable Cities and Society*, *44*, 265-274. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.scs.2018.10.014.
- 10. Bureau of Economic Analysis. (2019), *Gross Domestic Product, Second Quarter* 2019 (Advance Estimate) and Annual Update. (2019). Retrieved from https://www.bea.gov/news/2019/gross-domestic-product-2nd-quarter-2019-advance-estimate-and-annual-update.
- 11. Bertoni, A., & Bertoni, M. (2018). PSS cost engineering: A model-based approach for concept design. *CIRP Journal of Manufacturing Science and Technology*. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cirpj.2018.08.001.
- 12. Birge, J.R. and Louveaux, F. (1997) *Introduction to Stochastic Programming*. Springer-Verlag, New York.
- Bouchaud, J.-P., Farmer, J. D., & Lillo, F. (2009). CHAPTER 2 How Markets Slowly Digest Changes in Supply and Demand A2 - Hens, Thorsten. In K. R. Schenk-Hoppé (Ed.), Handbook of Financial Markets: Dynamics and Evolution (pp. 57-160). San Diego: North-Holland.
- 14. Bach, R. (2012). *Former Microsoft Zune Boss Explains Why It Flopped*. Retrieved from https://www.businessinsider.com/robbie-bach-explains-why-the-zune-flopped-2012-5.
- 15. Barrow, D. K. (2016). Forecasting intraday call arrivals using the seasonal moving average method. *Journal of Business Research*, 69(12), 6088-6096. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jbusres.2016.06.016.
- Björklund, T. A. (2013). Initial mental representations of design problems: Differences between experts and novices. *Design Studies*, 34(2), 135-160. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.destud.2012.08.005.
- 17. Baecke, P., De Baets, S., & Vanderheyden, K. (2017). Investigating the added value of integrating human judgement into statistical demand forecasting systems.

International Journal of Production Economics, 191, 85-96. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijpe.2017.05.016.

- Barrow, D. K., & Kourentzes, N. (2016). Distributions of forecasting errors of forecast combinations: Implications for inventory management. *International Journal of Production Economics*, 177, 24-33. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijpe.2016.03.017.
- 19. Craig, C. S., & Douglas, S. P. (2005). *International Marketing Research*. Chichester, England: John Wiley & Sons. P. 443-476.
- Cassel, C. M., & Lyberg, L. (2001). Sample Surveys: Methods. In N. J. Smelser & P. B. Baltes (Eds.), International Encyclopedia of the Social & Behavioral Sciences, Oxford: Pergamon, (pp. 13458-13462).
- Caniato F, Kalchschmidt M & Ronchi S (2011) Integrating quantitative and qualitative forecasting approaches: organizational learning in an action research case, *Journal of the Operational Research Society*, 62:3, 413-424, DOI: 10.1057/jors.2010.142.
- 22. Clark, A. (2009). *General Motors declares bankruptcy the biggest manufacturing collapse in US history*. Retrieved from https://www.theguardian.com/business/2009/jun/01/general-motors-bankruptcy-chapter-11.
- Chen, B. X. (2012). In Flop of H.P. TouchPad, an Object Lesson for the Tech Sector. Retrieved from https://www.nytimes.com/2012/01/02/technology/hewlett-packardstouchpad-was-built-on-flawed-software-some-say.html.
- 24. Carlson, N. (2013). *Facebook's New Mobile Product Is a Huge Flop Because It Was Built By iPhone Users*. Retrieved from https://www.businessinsider.com/facebook-made-a-simple-huge-mistake-building-home-which-looks-like-a-bigger-flop-by-the-second-2013-5.
- Castellari, E., Moro, D., Platoni, S., & Sckokai, P. (2018). Retailers' strategies and food price dynamics: Evidence from dairy scanner data. *Food Policy*, 74, 212-224. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.foodpol.2017.12.005.
- 26. Rutberg, S., & Bouikidis, C.D. (2018). Focusing on the fundamentals: A simplistic differentiation between qualitative and quantitative research. *Nephrology Nursing Journal*, 45(2), 209-212.
- Carrasco, J.-A., & Lucas, K. (2015). Workshop Synthesis: Measuring Attitudes; Quantitative and Qualitative Methods. *Transportation Research Procedia*, 11, 165-171. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.trpro.2015.12.014.
- Chen, X., Li, H., Liang, H., & Lin, H. (2019). Functional response regression analysis. *Journal of Multivariate Analysis*, 169, 218-233. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jmva.2018.09.009.
- 29. Cheraghalikhani, A., Khoshalhan, F & Mokhtari, H. (2019). Aggregate production planning: A literature review and future research directions. *International Journal of Industrial Engineering Computations*, 10(2), 309-330.

- 30. Christopher, B. (2002a), "New ideas for cost and profit management", *Journal of Cost Management*, Vol. 16 No. 4, pp. 41-45.
- 31. Christopher, B. (2002b), "From cost management to profit management", *Journal* of Cost Management, Vol. 16 No. 6, pp. 42-46.
- 32. Creighton, J. (2014). *Forecasting for Manufacturing 101*. Retrieved from https://www.manortool.com/blog/forecasting-for-manufacturing-101/.
- 33. Cuyck, C. V. (2015). The Inefficient Market Hypothesis (IMH): profiteering from irrational market behaviour. *The inefficient market hypothesis*, Vol 813.
- 34. Dantzig, G. (1998). *Linear Programming and Extensions:* Princeton University Press (August 3, 1998).
- 35. Dowling, E.T., 1992, "Theory and Problems of Introduction to Mathematical *Economics*", Schaum's Outline Series, McGraw-Hall Inc., New York.
- 36. Dwivedi, D., (2008), "Managerial Economics", VIKAS Publishing House PVT Limited, New Delhi 11.
- 37. Dujmovic, J. (2015). 20 biggest reasons why startup companies fail. Retrieved from https://www.marketwatch.com/story/20-biggest-reasons-why-startup-companies-fail-2015-06-16.
- Danese, P., & Kalchschmidt, M. (2011). The role of the forecasting process in improving forecast accuracy and operational performance. *International Journal of Production Economics*, 131(1), 204-214. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijpe.2010.09.006.
- 39. Essays, UK. (2013). *Problems with Neoclassical Economics A Case Study in China*. Retrieved from https://www.ukessays.com/essays/economics/problems-with-neoclassical-economics-a-case-study-in-china-economics-essay.php?vref=1.
- 40. Eigenraam, A. W., Eelen, J., van Lin, A., & Verlegh, P. W. J. (2018). A Consumerbased Taxonomy of Digital Customer Engagement Practices. *Journal of Interactive Marketing*, 44, 102-121. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.intmar.2018.07.002.
- 41. Eurostat. (2016). Manufacturing statistics NACE Rev. 2: Relative importance of manufacturing (NACE Section C), 2013 (% share of value added and employment in the non-financial business economy total). Retrieve from http://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/statistics
 - explained/index.php/Manufacturing_statistics_-_NACE_Rev._2.
- 42. Frederick S. Hillier, Lieberman. G. J. (2001). *Introduction to Operations Research:* McGraw-Hill. P. 2-79.
- 43. Fernández, R., & Palazuelos, E. (2018). Measuring the role of manufacturing in the productivity growth of the European economies (1993–2007). *Structural Change and Economic Dynamics*, 46, 1-12. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.strueco.2018.03.003.
- Firmino, P. R. A., de Mattos Neto, P. S. G., & Ferreira, T. A. E. (2015). Error modeling approach to improve time series forecasters. *Neurocomputing*, 153, 242-254. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.neucom.2014.11.030.

- 45. Frequently asked Questions (faqs) U.S. Energy Information Administration (EIA). (n.d.). Retrieved February 13, 2021, from https://www.eia.gov/tools/faqs/faq.php?id=10&t=10.
- Fullerton, R. R., & McWatters, C. S. (2001). The production performance benefits from JIT implementation. *Journal of Operations Management*, 19(1), 81-96. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/S0272-6963(00)00051-6.
- 47. Fildes, Robert and Petropoulos, Fotios (2015). Improving forecast quality in practice. Foresight: *The International Journal of Applied Forecasting* 36, pp. 5-12.
- Fildes, R., & Stekler, H. (2002). The state of macroeconomic forecasting. *Journal of Macroeconomics*, 24(4), 435-468. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/S0164-0704(02)00055-1.
- Fildes R, Nikolopoulos K, Crone S & Syntetos A (2008) Forecasting and operational research: a review, *Journal of the Operational Research Society*, 59:9, 1150-1172, DOI: <u>10.1057/palgrave.jors.2602597</u>.
- 50. Fontaine, J. (2004), "Profit driver management", *CMA Management*, Vol. 78 No. 3, pp. 16-19.
- Goddard, J., Tavakoli, M., & Wilson, J. O. S. (2009). Sources of variation in firm profitability and growth. *Journal of Business Research*, 62(4), 495-508. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jbusres.2007.10.007.
- Glock, C. H., Grosse, E. H., Jaber, M. Y., & Smunt, T. L. (2018). Applications of learning curves in production and operations management: A systematic literature review. *Computers & Industrial Engineering*. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cie.2018.10.030.
- 53. Goodwin, P., Gönül, M. S., & Önkal, D. (2019). When providing optimistic and pessimistic scenarios can be detrimental to judgmental demand forecasts and production decisions. *European Journal of Operational Research*, 273(3), 992-1004. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ejor.2018.09.033.
- Gunduz, M., Ugur, L. O., & Ozturk, E. (2011). Parametric cost estimation system for light rail transit and metro trackworks. *Expert Systems with Applications*, 38(3), 2873-2877. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.eswa.2010.08.080.
- 55. Hyoduk Shin, Tunca. I. T. (2010). Do Firms Invest in Forecasting Efficiently? The Effect of Competition on Demand Forecast Investments and Supply Chain Coordination. 58, 1592-1610.
- He, P., Ng, T. S., & Su, B. (2017). Energy-economic recovery resilience with Input-Output linear programming models. *Energy Economics*, 68, 177-191. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.eneco.2017.10.005.
- 57. Herendeen, J. B. (1975). *The Economics of the Corporate Economy*: New York: Dunellen; Port Washington, N.Y.: Distributed by Kennikat Press Corp.
- 58. Hoogervorst, J. (2018). Foundations of Enterprise Governance and Enterprise Engineering. P.474.

- 59. Haraguchi, N, Cheng, C. F. C & Smeets E. (2017). "The Importance of Manufacturing in Economic Development: Has This Changed?" *World Development*, Elsevier, vol. 93(C), pages 293-315.
- 60. Holdsworth, J. C., Hartill, B. W., Heinemann, A., & Wynne-Jones, J. (2018). Integrated survey methods to estimate harvest by marine recreational fishers in New Zealand. *Fisheries Research*, 204, 424-432. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.fishres.2018.03.018.
- Hribar, R., Potočnik, P., Šilc, J., & Papa, G. (2019). A comparison of models for forecasting the residential natural gas demand of an urban area. *Energy*, 167, 511-522. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.energy.2018.10.175.
- 62. Hatamleh, M. T., Hiyassat, M., Sweis, G. J., & Sweis, R. J. (2018). Factors affecting the accuracy of cost estimate: *case of Jordan. Engineering, Construction and Architectural Management*, 25(1), 113-131. doi:10.1108/ECAM-10-2016-0232.
- 63. Hamel, G. (2018). *Decision-Making Tools & Techniques for Strategic Planning*. Retrieved from https://smallbusiness.chron.com/decisionmaking-tools-techniques-strategic-planning-20890.html.
- Hueber, C., Horejsi, K., & Schledjewski, R. (2016). Review of cost estimation: methods and models for aerospace composite manufacturing. Advanced Manufacturing: *Polymer & Composites Science*, 2(1), 1-13. doi:10.1080/20550340.2016.1154642.
- 65. Hess, M. (2017). *Modeling positive electricity prices with arithmetic jump-diffusions*. *Energy Economics*, 67, 496-507. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.eneco.2017.08.016.
- 66. Hafner, C. M., & Herwartz, H. (2001). Option pricing under linear autoregressive dynamics, heteroskedasticity, and conditional leptokurtosis. *Journal of Empirical Finance*, 8(1), 1-34. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/S0927-5398(00)00024-4.
- 67. Hyndman. R. J, & <u>Athanasopoulos</u> . A. (2013). *Forecasting: principles and practice*: OTexts. P 12-25.
- 68. Hyndman R., & Athanasopoulos G. (2018). *Forecasting: principles and practice* (second ed.), pp 11-25, OTexts.
- Hecht-Nielsen, R. (1992). III.3 Theory of the Backpropagation Neural Network**Based on "nonindent" by Robert Hecht-Nielsen, which appeared in Proceedings of the *International Joint Conference on Neural Networks* 1, 593–611, June 1989. © 1989 IEEE. In H. Wechsler (Ed.), Neural Networks for Perception (pp. 65-93): Academic Press.
- Ivanova, Z., Pichugin, I., & Naimaviciene, J. (2015). Behavioral Aspects of Energy and Heat Consumption (Basing on Opinion Poll Data). *Procedia Engineering*, 117, 154-161. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.proeng.2015.08.136.
- 71. Isidore, C. (2009). *GM bankruptcy: End of an era*. Retrieved from http://money.cnn.com/2009/06/01/news/companies/gm_bankruptcy/.
- Januschowski. T, Gasthaus. J, Wang. Y, Salinas. D, Flunkert. V, Bohlke-Schneider. M, Callot. L, (2019). Criteria for classifying forecasting methods. *International Journal of Forecasting.*, https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijforecast.2019.05.008.

- 73. John C. Chambers, S. K. M. D. S. (1971). *How to Choose the Right Forecasting Technique*. Harvard Business Review.
- Jugović A, Hess S, Poletan Jugović T. (2012). *Traffic Demand Forecasting for Port* Services. Promet - Traffic & Transportation; 23(1):59-. Available from: https://traffic.fpz.hr/index.php/PROMTT/article/view/149.
- 75. Jagerson, J. (2018). *What is the Compound Annual Growth Rate* CAGR. Retrieved from https://www.investopedia.com/terms/c/cagr.asp.
- 76. Kenton, W. (2019, August 20). *Understanding Profit*. Retrieved from https://www.investopedia.com/terms/p/profit.aspKareem,
- 77. B and A. Aderoba, (2008), "Linear Programming based Effective Maintenance and Manpower Planning Strategy", *International Journal of the Computer, the Internet and Management*, vol.16 pp.26-34.
- 78. Kall, P. & Mayer, J. (2005). *Stochastic Linear Programming: Models, Theory, and Computation*. SpringerVerlag.
- Kim, G.-H., An, S.-H., & Kang, K.-I. (2004). Comparison of construction cost estimating models based on regression analysis, neural networks, and case-based reasoning. *Building and Environment*, 39(10), 1235-1242. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.buildenv.2004.02.013.
- Kramer, L. (2018). How Does the Law of Supply and Demand Affect Prices? Retrieved from https://www.investopedia.com/ask/answers/033115/how-does-lawsupply-and-demand-affect-prices.asp.
- 81. Kenton, W. (2018). *Price Elasticity of Demand*. Retrieved from https://www.investopedia.com/terms/p/priceelasticity.asp.
- 82. Kenton, W. *Cross Elasticity of Demand*. Retrieved from https://www.investopedia.com/terms/c/cross-elasticity-demand.asp.
- Kumar, S. and Harms, R. (2004), "Improving business processes for increased operational efficiency: a case study", *Journal of Manufacturing Technology Management*, Vol. 15 No. 7, pp. 662-674. https://doi-org.nukweb.nuk.unilj.si/10.1108/17410380410555907.
- Klioutchnikov, I., Sigova, M., & Beizerov, N. (2017). Chaos Theory in Finance. *Procedia* Computer Science, 119, 368-375. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.procs.2017.11.196.
- 85. Kenton, W. (2018). *Cost-Volume Profit Analysis*. Retrieved from https://www.investopedia.com/terms/c/cost-volume-profit-analysis.asp.
- Kersting, K., Mladenov, M., & Tokmakov, P. (2017). Relational linear programming. *Artificial Intelligence*, 244, 188-216. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.artint.2015.06.009.
- 87. Kenton, W. (2019). *What Is the High-Low Method?* Retrieved from https://www.investopedia.com/terms/h/high-low-method.asp.
- 88. Kenton, W. (2018). *DEFINITION of Scattergraph Method*. Retrieved from https://www.investopedia.com/terms/s/scattergraph-method.asp.

- 89. Khan, Z.A. (2017), Profit maximization as an objective of a firm-a robust perspective. *International Journal of Research in Finance and Marketing*, 7(6), 217-219.
 Kurzaki, L. (2012). *Importance of forecasting in enterprise management*. 6(1), 173-182.
- 90. Kreye, M., Goh, Y.M., Newnes, L.B., (2009), Uncertainty in Through Life Costing within the Concept of Product Service Systems: a Game Theoretic Approach. DS 58-7: Proceedings of ICED 09 the 17th International Conference on Engineering Design, vol. 7.
- 91. Li. Y. P., Huang. G. H., Nie. S. L., Huang.Y. F. (2006). *IFTSIP:* interval fuzzy twostage stochastic mixed-integer linear programming: a case study for environmental management and planning. *Civil Engineering and Environmental Systems* 23:2, pages 73-99.
- 92. Lauinger, D., Caliandro, P., Van herle, J., & Kuhn, D. (2016). A linear programming approach to the optimization of residential energy systems. *Journal of Energy Storage*, 7, 24-37. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.est.2016.04.009.
- 93. Lulaj. L & Iseni. E. (2018). Role of Analysis CVP (Cost-Volume-Profit) as Important Indicator for Planning and Making Decisions in the Business Environment. *European Journal of Economics and Business Studies*, *4*, 99-114.
- 94. Lim, B. Y., Wang, J., & Yao, Y. (2018). Time-series momentum in nearly 100 years of stock returns. *Journal of Banking & Finance*, 97, 283-296. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jbankfin.2018.10.010.
- 95. Lister, J. A *Summary of the Cost System of Labor*. Retrieved from https://smallbusiness.chron.com/summary-cost-system-labor-37194.html.
- 96. Larry M. Walther, Christopher. J. S. (2017). *Managerial and Cost Accounting* Create Space Independent Publishing Platform, P 26-49.
- 97. Larry M. Walther, Christopher. J. S. (2009). *Managerial and cost accounting* Create Space Independent Publishing Platform, P 17.
- Lahiri, K., & Sheng, X. (2008). Evolution of forecast disagreement in a Bayesian learning model. *Journal of Econometrics*, 144(2), 325-340. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jeconom.2008.02.002.
- 99. Mahmoudi, H., & Fazlollahtabar, H. (2014). An integer linear programming for a comprehensive reverse supply chain. *Cogent Engineering*, 1(1), 939440. doi:10.1080/23311916.2014.939440.
- 100. Mula, J., Poler, R., García-Sabater, J. P., & Lario, F. C. (2006). Models for production planning under uncertainty: A review. *International Journal of Production Economics*, 103(1), 271-285. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijpe.2005.09.001.

- 101. Mulvey J.M., R. Vanderbei, S. Zenios. (1995). Robust optimization of large-scale systems. Res., 43 (2) (1995), pp. 264-281.
- 102. Mechleri, E., & Arellano-Garcia, H. (2018). A Mathematical Programming Approach to Optimal Design of Smart Distributed Energy Systems. *In M. R. Eden, M. G.* Ierapetritou, & G. P. Towler (Eds.), *Computer Aided Chemical Engineering* (Vol. 44, pp. 2521-2526): Elsevier.
- 103. Maqsood. I., Huang. G. H., Zeng. G. M. (2004). An inexact two-stage mixed integer linear programming model for waste management under uncertainty. *Civil Engineering and Environmental Systems* 21:3, pages 187-206.
- 104. MarketWatch. (2015). *12 worst American product flops*. Retrieved from https://www.marketwatch.com/story/12-worst-american-product-flops-2015-04-10.
- 105. Malone, R. (2013). 6 Inbound Marketing Testing Methods You Should Be Utilizing. Retrieved from https://www.smartbugmedia.com/blog/6-inbound-marketing-testing-methods-you-should-be-utilizing.
- 106. Meigs, Robert F., ed. Accounting: The Basis for Business Decisions. 11 ed. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1998.
- 107. Moon, M. A. (2015). *Demand and Supply Integration: The Key to World-Class Demand Forecasting* (1 ed. Vol. chapter 6): Pearson FT Press.
- 108. Mohammed, R. (2018). *The Good-Better-Best Approach to Pricing*. Retrieved from https://hbr.org/2018/09/the-good-better-best-approach-to-pricing.
- Machina, M.J., Granger, C.W.J., (2005). "Decision-based forecast evaluation". Manuscript, Department of Economics, University of California, San Diego, PP 82-98.
- 110. Moore, D.A, Loewenstein, G. (2004). Self-Interest, Automaticity, and the Psychology of Conflict of Interest. *Social Justice Research*, 17(2), 189-202.
- 111.Niazi. A J.S. Dai, S. Balabani, L. Seneviratne. (2006). Product cost estimation: Technique classification and methodology review, *Journal of Manufacturing Science* and Engineering, 128 (2) (2006), pp. 563-575.
- 112. Nolte, I., Nolte, S., & Pohlmeier, W. (2019). What determines forecasters' forecasting errors? *International Journal of Forecasting*, 35(1), 11-24. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijforecast.2018.07.007.
- 113. Nenova, Z. D., & May, J. H. (2016). Determining an optimal hierarchical forecasting model based on the characteristics of the data set: Technical note. *Journal of Operations Management*, 44, 62-68. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jom.2016.04.001.
- 114. Novák, P., Popesko, B. (2014). Cost Variability and Cost Behaviour in Manufacturing Enterprises, *Economics and Sociology*, Vol. 7, No 4, pp. 89-103. DOI: 10.14254/2071-789X.2014/7-4/6.
- 115.Ohyver, M., & Pudjihastuti, H. (2018). Arima Model for Forecasting the Price of Medium Quality Rice to Anticipate Price Fluctuations. *Procedia Computer Science*, 135, 707-711. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.procs.2018.08.215.
- 116. Operations research proceedings 2019. (2020). *Operations Research Proceedings*. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-030-48439-2

- 117. Pal Singh Toor, T. & Dhir, T. (2011), "Benefits of integrated business planning, forecasting, and process management", *Business Strategy Series*, Vol. 12 No. 6, pp. 275-288. https://doi.org/10.1108/17515631111185914.
- 118. Paris Q. (2016) Introduction to Linear Programming. In: An Economic Interpretation of Linear Programming. Palgrave Macmillan, New York, P. 1-38. https://doi.org/10.1057/9781137573926_1.
- Pradhan, B., Lee, S., & Buchroithner, M. F. (2010). A GIS-based back-propagation neural network model and its cross-application and validation for landslide susceptibility analyses. Computers, *Environment and Urban Systems*, 34(3), 216-235. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.compenvurbsys.2009.12.004.
- Prakasa Rao, B. L. S. (2016). Pricing geometric Asian power options under mixed fractional Brownian motion environment. Physica A: *Statistical Mechanics and its Applications*, 446, 92-99. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.physa.2015.11.013.
- Petropoulos, F., Kourentzes, N., Nikolopoulos, K., & Siemsen, E. (2018). Judgmental selection of forecasting models. *Journal of Operations Management*, 60, 34-46. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jom.2018.05.005.
- 122. Perera, H. N., Hurley, J., Fahimnia, B., & Reisi, M. (2019). The human factor in supply chain forecasting: A systematic review. *European Journal of Operational Research*, 274(2), 574-600. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ejor.2018.10.028.
- 123. Ryals. L, Wilson. H. (2005). Experimental methods in market research from information to insight. *International Journal of Market Research*, 47(4), 345-364.
- 124. Rieg, R. (2010), "Do forecasts improve over time?", International Journal of Accounting & Information Management, Vol. 18 No. 3, pp. 220-236. https://doi.org/10.1108/18347641011068974
- 125. Ritholtz, B. (2017). *The World Is About to Change Even Faster*. Retrieved from https://www.bloomberg.com/view/articles/2017-07-06/the-world-is-about-to-change-even-faster.
- 126. Rowe, G., & Wright, G. (1999). The Delphi technique as a forecasting tool: issues and analysis. *International Journal of Forecasting*, 15(4), 353-375. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/S0169-2070(99)00018-7.
- 127. Ramnath, S., Rock, S., & Shane, P. (2008). The financial analyst forecasting literature: A taxonomy with suggestions for further research. *International Journal of Forecasting*, 24(1), 34-75. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijforecast.2007.12.006.
- Das, S., Singh., P, Puri., G. (2017). A Predictive Analytics Model for Maximizing Profit in e-commerce Companies. *E - Commerce for Future & Trends.; 4(2): 19–32p.*
- 129. Stastny, B.J & Lehner, P.E. (March 2018). *Comparative evaluation of the forecast accuracy of analysis reports and a prediction market.* 13, pp. 202–211.
- 130. State-Motor-Fuel-Notes-Summary. (February 2021). American petroleum institute. Available at: https://www.api.org/-/media/Files/Statistics/State-Motor-Fuel-Notes-Summary-january-

2021.pdf?la=en&hash=9F058B51CBF13367AA91F3D98C4CEDDA150498050, 1> [Accessed 13 February 2021].

- Salmi, A., David, P., Blanco, E., & summers, J. D. (2016). A review of cost estimation models for determining assembly automation level. *Computers & Industrial Engineering*, 98, 246-259. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cie.2016.06.007.
 Suvrajeet Sen, J. L. H. (1999). An Introductory Tutorial on Stochastic Linear Programming Models. *INFORMS*, 29, 33–61.
- 133. Soumya Sen, Carlee Joe-Wong, Sangtae Ha, and Ms. Carlee Joe-Wong. (2014). *Smart Data Pricing:* Wiley.P. 186-193.
- 134. Sönnichsen, N. (2020, August 12). Topic: *Gasoline industry in the United States*. *Statista*. https://www.statista.com/topics/1971/gasoline-industry-in-the-us/
- 135. Shaughnessy, H. (2013). Apple's Rise and Nokia's Fall Highlight Platform Strategy Essentials. Retrieved from https://www.forbes.com/sites/haydnshaughnessy/2013/03/08/apples-rise-andnokias-fall-highlight-platform-strategy-essentials/#1e1e7f0e6e9a.
- 136. Song, M., Park, E., Yoo, B., & Jeon, S. (2016). Is the Daily Deal Social Shopping?: An Empirical Analysis of Customer Panel Data. *Journal of Interactive Marketing*, 33, 57-76. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.intmar.2015.12.001.
- 137. Schoute, M. (2009). The relationship between cost system complexities, purposes of use, and cost system effectiveness. *The British Accounting Review*, 41(4), 208-226. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.bar.2009.10.001.
- 138. Stevenson, William J. *Operations Management*. 8 ed. Boston: McGraw-Hill Irwin, 2005.
- 139. Silvia. J.E, Iqbal Azhar. I, Swankoski. K, Watt. S, Bullard. S. (2014). *Economic and Business Forecasting: Analyzing and Interpreting Econometric* (1 ed. Vol. 68): Wiley and SAS Business Ser.P.307-316.
- 140. Ståhl, J. E., Gabrielson, P., Andersson, C., & Jönsson, M. (2012). Dynamic manufacturing costs—describing the dynamic behavior of downtimes from a cost perspective. *CIRP Journal of Manufacturing Science and Technology*, 5(4), 284-295. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cirpj.2012.09.003.
- 141. Sepahi Chavoshlou, A., Arshadi Khamseh, A., & Naderi, B. (2018). An optimization model of three-player payoff based on fuzzy game theory in green supply chain. *Computers & Industrial Engineering*. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cie.2018.12.057.
- 142. Sull, D. (1999). *Why Good Companies Go Bad. Harvard Business Review*. Retrieved from https://hbr.org/1999/07/why-good-companies-go-bad.
- 143. Schmitt, B. (2017). General Motors Is World's Third Largest, And Nearly Landed In #4. Retrieved from https://www.forbes.com/sites/bertelschmitt/2017/02/07/general-motors-is-worldsthird-largest/#6c72dd70587d.
- 144. Shahriari, M., Dessy, Aliandrina., Yan, F., (2005). *Human Errors in Decision Making*. Munich Personal RePEc Archive.

- 145. Spithourakis, G. P., Petropoulos, F., Nikolopoulos, K., & Assimakopoulos, V. (2015). Amplifying the learning effects via a Forecasting and Foresight Support System. *International Journal of Forecasting*, 31(1), 20-32. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijforecast.2014.05.002.
- 146. Stekler, H. O. (2015). Forecasting—Yesterday, Today and Tomorrow. International Journal of Forecasting, 31(1), 96-98. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijforecast.2014.03.003.
- 147. Solaja, Abraham and Abiodun, O., Abolaji and Abioro, J., Adekunle and Ekpudu, M., Ehimen and Olasubulumi, J., Moses, O., (2019): Application of linear programming in production planning. Published in: *International Journal of Applied Operational Research*, Vol. 9, No. 3 (15 June 2019): pp. 11-19.
- 148. Sinclair, T. M., Joutz, F., & Stekler, H. O. (2010). Can the Fed predict the state of the economy? *Economics Letters*, 108(1), 28-32. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.econlet.2010.04.010.
- 149. Schuh, G., Prote, J.-P., Luckert, M., Hünnekes, P., & Schmidhuber, M. (2019). Effects of the update frequency of production plans on the logistical performance of production planning and control. *Procedia CIRP*, 79, 421-426. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.procir.2019.02.115.
- 150. Turner, D. S. (1990), *The role of judgement in macroeconomic forecasting. J. Forecast.*, 9: 315-345. doi:10.1002/for.3980090404.
- 151. Tealab, A., Hefny, H., & Badr, A. (2018). Forecasting of nonlinear time series using artificial neural network. *Future Computing and Informatics* Journal, 3(2), 143-151. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.fcij.2017.06.001.
- 152. Thies, C., Kieckhäfer, K., Spengler, T. S., & Sodhi, M. S. (2019). Operations research for sustainability assessment of products: A review. *European Journal of Operational Research*, 274(1), 1-21. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ejor.2018.04.039.
- 153. Thomson, M. E., Pollock, A. C., Önkal, D., & Gönül, M. S. (2019). Combining forecasts: Performance and coherence. *International Journal of Forecasting*, 35(2), 474-484. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijforecast.2018.10.006.
- 154. Tomaskova H, Weber G. 2020. Approaches combining methods of Operational Research with Business Process Model and Notation: A systematic review PeerJ *Computer Science* 6:e301.https://doi.org/10.7717/peerj-cs.301.
- 155. US CENSUS BUREAU. (2018, SEPTEMBER 27). LIBRARY. RETRIEVED FROM https://www.census.gov/library/visualizations/2018/comm/manufacturing-america-2018.html.
- 156. U.S. Energy Information Administration EIA Independent Statistics and Analysis. (2020, August 19). Retrieved from https://www.eia.gov/energyexplained/gasoline/price-fluctuations.php
- 157. U.S. Energy Information Administration *EIA Independent Statistics and Analysis*. (n.d.). Retrieved November 04, 2020, from <u>https://www.eia.gov/finance/markets/crudeoil/</u>.

- 158. U.S. Energy Information Administration EIA Short-Term Energy Outlook. (n.d.). Retrieved (2021, January), from https://www.eia.gov/outlooks/steo/pdf/steo_full.pdf.
- 159. Uyar, A., & Kuzey, C. (2016). Does management accounting mediate the relationship between cost system design and performance? *Advances in Accounting*, 35, 170-176. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.adiac.2016.06.004.
- 160. U.S. Energy Information Administration. (2020). What drives crude oil prices? An analysis of 7 factors that influence oil markets, with chart data updated monthly and quarterly.

https://www.eia.gov/finance/markets/crudeoil/reports_presentations/crude.pdf.

- 161. Valkila, N., Litja, H., Aalto, L., & Saari, A. (2010). Consumer panel study on elderly people's wishes concerning services. *Archives of Gerontology and Geriatrics*, 51(3), e66-e71. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.archger.2009.12.004.
- 162. William L. Anderson, R. L. R. (2005). The methodology of profit maximization: An Austrian alternative. *The Quarterly Journal of Austrian Economics*, Volume 8(4), pp 31–44.
- 163. Wood, D. L., Li, J., & Daniel, C. (2015). Prospects for reducing the processing cost of lithiumion batteries. *Journal of Power Sources*, 275, 234-242. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jpowsour.2014.11.019.
- 164. Xu, Y., Elgh, F., Erkoyuncu, J. A., Bankole, O., Goh, Y., Cheung, W. M., Roy, R. (2012). Cost Engineering for manufacturing: Current and future research. *International Journal of Computer Integrated Manufacturing*, 25(4-5), 300-314. doi:10.1080/0951192X.2010.542183.
- 165. Yang, K., & Lee, L.-f. (2018). Identification and estimation of spatial dynamic panel simultaneous equations models. *Regional Science and Urban Economics*. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.regsciurbeco.2018.07.010.
- 166. Yang, S. (2019). Price-responsive early charging control based on data mining for electric vehicle online scheduling. *Electric Power Systems Research*, 167, 113-121. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.epsr.2018.10.029.
- 167. Zhang, Y., & Huang, J. H. (2014). Cost-based pricing model with value-added tax and corporate income tax for a supply chain network. *Applied Mathematical Modelling*, 38(1), 168-180. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.apm.2013.06.011.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1: Summary in the Slovenian language.

Namen raziskave je izboljšati točnost napovedovanja dobička z vključevanjem predvidevanj analize vpliva obsega proizvodnje na dobiček (angl. Cost-Volume-Profit, CVP) in modela linearnega programiranja za maksimizacijo dobička. V magistrski nalogi je razvit dodaten matematični model za maksimizacijo dobička namesto obstoječih metod napovedovanja. Temelji na komplementarnem matematičnem modelu, ki upošteva oba dejavnika, ki vplivata na maksimizacijo dobička, da bi tako izboljšali metode napovedovanja. Ta model temelji na metodologiji vpliva obsega proizvodnje na dobiček (angl. CVP) in metodologiji linearnega programiranja ter vključuje štiri spremenljivke (količina prodanega blaga, fiksni stroški, variabilni stroški na enoto in prodajna cena), poleg tega pa tudi vse dejavnike bodisi podjetja, njegovega sektorja ali poslovanja nasploh, ki vplivajo na te spremenljivke. Lahko so povezani s tem modelom in nato vplivajo na kalkulacije maksimizacije dobička. Vpliv obsega proizvodnje na dobiček (angl. CVP) je orodje za določanje poslovnega okolja, ki je lahko uporabno tako v proizvodni kot storitveni dejavnosti.
Appendix 2: Components and Annual Gasoline and Crude Oil Prices between 2017 and 2021 in the United States of America.



Source: U.S. Energy Information Administration (2021).

C	D	E
Year		Data 1: U.S. All Grades All Formulations Retail Gasoline Prices (Dollars per Gallon)
1994		1.078
1995		1.158
1996		1.245
1997		1.244
1998		1.072
1999		1.176
2000		1.523
2001		1.46
2002		1.386
2003		1.603
2004		1.895
2005		2.314
2006		2.618
2007		2.843
2008		3.299
2009		2.406
2010		2.835
2011		3.576
2012		3.68
2013		3.575
2014		3.437
2015		2.52
2016		2.25
2017		2.528
		1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Appendix 3: The Retail Gasoline Price in the United States of America.

Source: U.S. Energy Information Administration (2020).

Appendix 4: Information about Gasoline Consumption between 1994 and 2017 in the United States of America.

1	A	B	C	D	E	F	G	н	1	3
1	Back to Contents	Data 1: U.S. Total	Gasoline	Retail	Sales b	y Refiners	(Thous	and Gall	ons per	Day)
2	Sourcekey	A103500001				Chinese and the	0.001		200	100.00
3	Date	U.S. Total Gasoline Retail Sales by Refiners (Thousand Gallons per Day)								
4										
5	1994	55033.2								
6	1995	55922.5								
7	1996	57536								
8	1997	61123.4								
9	1998	63330.3								
10	1999	61956								
11	2000	60896.9								
12	2001	62013.4								
13	2002	63638.4								
14	2003	63830.5								
15	2004	58388.6								
16	2005	58977.4								
17	2006	59977.8								
18	2007	57653.5								
19	2008	55108.1								
20	2009	49797.6								
21	2010	44697								
22	2011	39002.1								
23	2012	29725.8								
24	2013	24722.5								
25	2014	21633.6								
26	2015	25454.1								
27	2016	25604.5								
28	2017	24498.1								

Source: The World Bank and U.S. Energy Information Administration (2020).

Appendix 5: The Total Retail Sales and Price by Refiners between 1991 and 2019 in the United State of America.

A	H27	Ŧ	:	X	\checkmark	fx															
	Α	в		С	D	Е	F	G	Н	1	J	К	L	M	N	0	Р	Q	R	S	Т
1 U.S. Total Gasoline Retail Sales by Refiners													U.S. Tota	il Gasoline Re	etail Sales	by Refi	ners			í	
2	https://ww	/w.eia.go	v/dn/	av/pet	/hist/Lea	fHandler.a	ashx?n=Pl	ET&s=EMA	LEPM0_	PTG_NUS	LDPG&f=/	A	https://ww	vw.eia.gov/dr	navlpetlhi	ist/Leaf	Handler.a	shx?n=pe	et&s=a103	500001&r	f=a
3 22:03:23 GMT+0100 (Central European Standard					d Time)				1		21:53:56	GMT+0100 (C	Central Eu	ropean	Standard	Time)		1			
4	Source: L	J.S. Energ	gy Inf	ormati	on Admir	nistration							Source: L	J.S. Energy In	formation	Admin	istration			1	
5	Year	U.S. Tota	al Ga	soline	Retail Sa	ales by Rel	iners Dolla	ars per Gal	lon				Year	U.S. Total Ga	asoline Re	etail Sal	les by Refi	ners Thou	isand Gall	pns per D	lay
6	2019	2.245	i i										2019	24239						í I	
- 7	2018	2.303	1										2018	24267						1	
8	2017	1.976	i										2017	24498						I	
9	2016	1.73	1										2016	25605						í	
10	2015	2.003	1								1		2015	25454							
11	2014	2.855	;										2014	21634							
12	2013	3.049	1								i i		2013	24723						I	
13	2012	3.154											2012	29726							
14	2011	3.05	;										2011	39002							
15	2010	2.301	1										2010	44697							
16	2009	1.888	1										2009	49798						i	
17	2008	2.775	;								1		2008	55108							
18	2007	2.345	;										2007	57654						1	
19	2006	2.128	1										2006	59978							
20	2005	1.829	1										2005	58977						l	
21	2004	1.435	;								1		2004	58389							
22	2003	1.156	;										2003	63831						[
23	2002	0.947											2002	63638						1	
24	2001	1.032											2001	62013						i	
25	2000	1.106	;										2000	60897							
26	1999	0.781	1										1999	61956						1	
27	1998	0.673	1										1998	63330						1	
28	1997	0.839	1								1		1997	61123						i	
29	1996	0.847									1		1996	57536							
30	1995	0.765	;										1995	55923						1	
31	1994	0.738	1										1994	55033							
32	1993	0.759	1								1		1993	57219						l	
33	1992	0.787	'										1992	59128						1	
34	1991	0.797	'										1991	61181						1	
					1																-

Source: U.S. Energy Information Administration (2020).

Appendix 6: The Result of the Regression of Gasoline Retail Sales and price between 1994 and 2017 in the United States of America.

	А	В	С	D	E	F	G	н	T	J
1	SUMMARY	OUTPUT								
2										
3	Regression	Statistics								
4	Multiple F	0.728194								
5	R Square	0.530266								
6	Adjusted I	0.516845								
7	Standard I	10149.29								
8	Observati	37								
9										
10	ANOVA									
11		df	SS	MS	F	gnificance	F			
12	Regressio	1	4.07E+09	4.07E+09	39.51025	3.25E-07				
13	Residual	35	3.61E+09	1.03E+08						
14	Total	36	7.68E+09							
15										
16	0	Coefficients	andard Err	t Stat	P-value	Lower 95%	Upper 95%	ower 95.0%	pper 95.0%	6
17	Intercept	69859.98	3467.926	20.1446	7.77E-21	62819.71	76900.24	62819.71	76900.24	
10	V V and a la la	12022.0	2057 400	6 29572	2 25E-07	-17109.8	-8755 91	-17109.8	-8755 91	
10	x variable	-12932.9	2037.455	-0.26572	J.2JL-07	-17105.0	0755.51	1/105.0	0700.01	

Source: Own work

Appendix 7: The Codes of this Mathematical Model in the MATLAB for the Calculation of the Result (Case Study).

```
Aeg=[0.78 0 -1 0;0.22 0 0 -1;12932.9 1 0 0];
beg=[0;0;69859.97753];
lb=[2;20000;0;0];
ub=[4;60000;inf;inf];
A=[];
b=[];
x0=[0 0 0 0];
[x_opt,f_opt,flag]=fmincon(@GF,x0,A,b,Aeq,beg,lb,ub);
f_opt=-f_opt;
vpa(x_opt,4)
vpa(f_opt,4)
function y=GF(x)
y=1.1881*x(1)*x(2)-1.2099*x(3)*x(2)-1.3*x(4)*x(2);
y=-y;
end
```

Source: Own work